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2020 11
27,462,105.89 90.5
2,867,951.92 9.5
30,330,057.81
100.0
3,151
2020 11

264,211.14]101.69 |26,868,440.94| 103.94 |27,462,105.89| 90.5

2020 11 10
2020 11

CENTRAL NIPPON EXPRESSWY 0.68 2022/ /15 A 1.8
FED HOME LN MTGE GLBL NT 0.69 2025/ / AAA | 1.3
BAT CAPITAL CORP SR UNSEC 1.10 2022/ /15 BBB 1.2
FORD MOTOR CREDIT CO LLC SR

2.77 20217 / BB 1.1
UNSEC
WELLS FARGO & COMPANY SR UNSEC 1.44 2023/10/31 A 1.1
QNB  FINANCE LTD SR UNSEC FRN

1.31 2022/ /12 AA 1.0
SOFR
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HSBC HOLDINGS PLC SR UNSEC 1.48 | 2025/ /11 A | 1.0
FED HOME LN MTGE GLBL NT 0.75 | 2025/ /28 AAA | 1.0
JPMORGAN CHASE & CO SR UNSEC 1.44 | 2023/10/24 M | 1.0

10

S&P S&P
2020 11
2020 11
2019 12 2020 11

2020 236,798,631 3,123,373.95 11.04 146
2019 12 78,202,008 1,031,484.49 10.39 137
2020 89,538,862 1,181,017.59 10.53 139
2020 171,065,201 2,256,350.00 10.57 139
2020 208,113,484 2,745,016.86 10.36 137
2020 216,715,931 2,858,483.13 10.72 141
2020 231,661,298 3,055,612.53 10.88 144
2020 239,186,211 3,154,866.12 11.07 146
2020 236,798,631 3,123,373.95 11.04 146
2020 250,391,028 3,302,657.66 11.36 150
2020 254,033,938 3,350,707.64 11.51 152
2020 10 243,902,144 3,217,069.28 11.57 153
2020 11 237,249,295 3,129,318.20 11.75 155
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3,000

150

90
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10
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2020 31

2020 31
USD

2.2 5 6 $ 34,351,706 ¥ 3,568,799

2.1 189,423 19,679

104,059 10,811

2.4 440,180 45,730

2.10 3 107,024 11,119

35,192,392 3,656,138

2.2 5 6 984,862 102,317

2.10 3 186,376 19,363

38,709 4,021

8.1C 34,791 3,614

8.1F 19,250 2,000

8.1B 7,041 731

8.2B 3,190 331

8.1E 2,750 286

2.4 844 88

8.2D 296 31

$ 1,278,109 ¥ 132,783

$ 33,914,283 ¥ 3,523,355
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2019 29 2020 31
2020 31
usD
FVTPL @
2,11 7 $ (2,389,313) ¥ (248,226)
2.2 2,11 7 (161,864) (16,816)
2.11 154 16
2.6 (116,465) (12,100)
2.6 (620) (64)
(2.668,108) (277,190)
8.1C 115,003 11,948
67,085 6,969
8.18 34,728 3,608
26,817 2,786
8.2B 25,205 2,619
8.1F 19,250 2,000
8.1E 13,888 1,443
8.1A 8,382 871
8.2D 1,917 199
312,275 32,442
(2,980,383) (309,632)
$ (2,980,383) ¥ (309,632)
(€))
FVTPL
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2019 29 2020 31
usD
2019 29 ¥
41,654,189 4,327,454
2.8 (4,759,523) (494,467)
(2,980,383) (309,632)
2020 31 33,914,283 ¥ 3,523,355
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2019 29 2020 31
2020 31
usD
$ (2,980,383) ¥ (309,632)
(40,794,463) (4,238,137)
7,335,270 762,061
(2,458,828) (255,448)
2,389,313 248,226
161,864 16,816
(440,180) (45,730)
(104,059) (10,811)
844 88
(6 106,027 11,015
(36,784,595) (3,821,552)
41,547,165 4,316,335
(4,573,147) (475,104)
36,974,018 3,841,231
189,423 19,679
2.1 $ 189,423 ¥ 19,679
$ 154 ¥ 16
@
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2019 2020 31
1.
2013
12
2019
2019 29
2014 22
KY1-9007
190 190 Elgin Avenue, George Town, Grand Cayman KY1-9007, Cayman lIslands
usb $
TRY
C
C
2020 31 7.9

87/230



EDINETOOOO
DOo00oOOo0ooDo00oo00Do00DoO0Ooo(ELs389)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2019 29 2020 31
6 C J
J C
2163 12
32
2020 11 30
2.
IFRS IFRS
4
IFRS 10 IFRS 12 I1AS 27 2012
IFRS 9 3
FVTPL FVOCI IFRS 9
FVTPL
FVTPL

SPPI
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2019 29 2020 31

SPP1

FVTPL

SPP1

SPP1
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2019 29 2020 31
ECL FVOCI
ECL
FVTPL
12
ECL
2019 29 2020 31
2019 29
2.1
2020 31
2020
$ 189,423
$ 189,423

2.2
®

FVTPL

2020 31 2020 31
$ 34,146,093 $ 33,528,708
205,613
$ 34,351,706 $ 33,528,708
FVTPL
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2019 29 2020 31
2020 31 2020 31

$ 984,862 $

$ 984,862 $
®
©
O)
®
®

NAV

NAV
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2019 29 2020 31

10

2.3

2020
31

2.4

2.5

2.6

Q)

®

2.7

2020 31
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2019 29 2020 31

2.8
1AS
32

2020 31

2.9

2.10

2.11 FVTPL
FVTPL
FVTPL FVTPL

FVTPL
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2019 29 2020 31
2.12
2063 12
2020 31
1AS 12
2020 31
2.13
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2019 29 2020 31
10
2 6
2020 31
$ 33,914,283 21,455,319  § 1.5807
2020 31 100
2020 31
2019 29 2020 31
$ $ 41,654,189  $ (4,759,523) % 36,894,666
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2020 31

2019 29

2020 31

5.1

®

)

24,353,267

96/230
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2019 29 2020 31
INF
2020 31
2020 31 *
TRY $ $ $ (779,249) $ 107,024 $  (672,225) (2,0)
(779,249) 107,024 (672,225) ,0)
usD 189,423 34,146,093 250,992 34,586,508 102.0
$ 189,423 $ 34,146,093 $ (779,249) $ 358,016 $ 33,914,283 100.0
*
2020 31
2020
TRY 26.01 $ 174,846
c
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2019 29 2020 31

D)

2020 31 50

947

QD)

341,461 2020
31
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2019 29 2020 31

2020 31

$ 3,844,830
1,722,347

4,683,202

31,081,490

795,563

2,129,324

1,304,029

508,679

803,034

1,702,414

3,726,978

11,567,044

459,158

37,248,773

600,223

8,201,924

,014,289
509,670
,113,936
,312,473
,791,741
,009,150
63,305,880
218,071,570

1,010,424

$ 408,518,145

w w NN g =
[N
A O O O P O O FP O 0 O NOOOOOOOSNPFER, oo

[3)]
o o

OIN O N N © OO N PN O RFP OO, N O BRRDNEPE WOONMDNDERE MO

©
=
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2019 29 2020 31
®
2020 31
2020 31
A
2020 31

Aaa 23.4
Aal 0.4
Aa2 0.4
Aa3 2.6
Al 7.0
A2 6.7
A3 10.2
Baal 4.8
Baa2 11.0
Baa3 12.0
Bal 1.3
Ba2 2.0
Ba3 0.3
B1 0.6
B3 0.2
Caal 0.2
NR 11.5

94.6

/S&P/
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2019 29 2020 31
©
/
2020 31
186,376 186,376
38,709 38,709
34,791 34,791
19,250 19,250
7,041 7,041
3,190 3,190
2,750 2,750
844 844
296 296
$ 293,247 $ $ 293,247
15
2020 31
2020 31
$ 70,701,925 $ 34,037,272 $ $ 104,739,197
70,341,980 33,617,968 103,959,948
2020 31
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2019 29 2020 31

O]

5.2

Q)]

®

©

©
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2019 29 2020 31
2020 31
cs $ 205,613  $ $ 205,613
$ 205,613  $ $ 205,613
cs $ 205,613  $ (205,613)  $ $
$ 205,613  $ (205,613)  $ $
cs $ (984,862) $ $ (984,862)
(984,862) $ $ (984,862)
cs $ (984,862) $ 205,613  $ $  (779,249)
$ (984,862) $ 205,613  $ $  (779,249)
CS
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2019 29 2020 31

2020 31

©
2163 12 1

5.3
IFRS 13

104/230



EDINETOOOO
DOo00oOOo0ooDo00oo00Do00DoO0Ooo(ELs389)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2019 29 2020 31
3
3
2020 31
2020 31
c $ $ 34,146,093 $ $ 34,146,093
205,613 205,613
$ $ 34,351,706 $ $ 34,351,706
$ $ (984,862)  $ $ (984,862)
$ $ (984,862)  $ $ (984,862)
2020 31
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2019 29 2020 31
2020 31
2
5.4
2020 31 431,729,545 2020 31
431,148,133
408,518,145
33,489,616 587,258 2,254,726
(12,495,008) (1,187,522) (1,269)
(17,813)
2020 31
1
6.
100
1
100

2020 31 (0.0)
2020 cs TRY 245,795,107  USD (35,633,741) $ (565,558)
2020 cs usD 35,273,796  TRY  (245,795,107) 205,613
2020 10 cs TRY 241,472,316 USD (34,037,272) (419,304)

$ (779,249)
cs
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2019 29 2020 31
7.
2020 31
£ (2.389,313)
$ 69,515
(2,458,828)
$ (2.389,313)
$ 617,385
(779, 249)
$ (161,864)
8.
8.1
»
0.06 10 0.05 10
0.04 3,750 2020 31
2020 31
®
0.025 2020 31
2020 31
©
0.60
2020 31 2020 31
()]
0.35
2020 31 2020 31
®
0.01 1 10
2020 31 2020
31
®
2020 31 2020 31
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2019 29 2020 31

8.2

®
10,000 2020 31
2020 31

®

2020 31 2020 31

32

Actual/365

©
5,000
2020 31 2020 31

©
0.01

2020 31 2020 31

®

2020 31
2,457,984 779,249
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2019 29 2020 31
9.
10
2020 31
10.
2020
2020 31
2020 11 30 2020
2020 11 30 3,814,044 5,520,468
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2020
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31

463,931
0

565
1,289
1
4,670
26
1,603
0
25,176
2,958
1,479

501,698

48,198

59
134

485
167
2,616

307
154

35,587

697
2,284
3,948

25,097
1,020
2,653

0
93
0
0
21
99
0

52,121

71,499

3,697

72
237
410

2,607
106
276

10

10

430,199

7,428

111/230
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467,651 48,584

0 0

24 2

(16) (@)

5,000 519

32,539 3,380
320
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2020 31

13,093 1,360
0 0
13,093 1,360
178 18
246 26
614 64

0 0

225 23
225 23
765 79

0 0

41 4

56 6
140 15
1,945 202
108 11
4,543 472
8,550 888
5,078 528
0 0
(7,728) (803)
4,208 437
(356) 37)
1,202 125
(5,170) (537)
0 0
2,697 280
(7,038) (731)
14 1
(9,497) (987)
(8,295) (862)
255 26
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2020 31

8,550 888

1,202 125

(9,497) (987)

255 26

0 0

* 44,274 4,600
44,529 4,626

385,670 40,067

430,199 44,693

12
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2020 31
255 26
(851,077) (88,418)
871,206 90,510
(19,507) (2,027)
19,502 2,026
(19,178) (1,992)
(5,072) (527)
4,188 435
(547) (57)

583 61

TBA (194) (20)
751 78
(3,569) (371)
(4,042) (420)
TBA (2,091) 17)
(48) ®)
(3,620) (376)

30 3

0 0

0 0

7 1

26 3

(69) )

0 0

&4 ®
(5,078) (528)
7,728 803
(4,208) (437)
5,170 537
(2,697) (280)
7,038 731

363 38

219 23
(4,015) (417)
234,894 24,403
(188,814) (19,616)
3,209,370 333,421

(3,225,419) (335,089)
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4,547,788 472,470
(4,573,808) (475,173)
4,011 417
Q) ()
31 3
27

1,993 207
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2020 31
@
100.00 10,389
() 1.33 138
0.34 35
1.67 173
101.67 10,562
O 1.67
32,539 3,380
- 0.53
* 0.04
* 1.57
0.01
2019 29 2020 31
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2020 31

B 7 A B
(kL) {FHk{E

AT ERRE S 107, 9%

O 0035% due 08273021 ] plat 1] 3 200
AerCap Ireland Capital DAC

4. 4505 due 1201652021 R0} H3&
4. 500% due 06152021 b, T 1, 657
1. G25% due 10/30,3020 400 308
ATA Group Ltd

Lo G3E% due 06,30,/ 3021 1. 700 1. 678
Afr Lease Corp.

L5008 dus OG/00/2021 ) 22
S0 To0% due 01152023 O 51
3. 500% due 0115/ 2022 700 L)
Alrcastle Ltd.

5105 due OG 153021 1. 700 1. 667
Allstate Corp.

X 005% due 06,29,/ 2023 0 7
Ally Financial, Inc.

4. 250% due 4 15/2021 10 111
T 500 due 0415/2020 B i)
American Tower Carp.

RATEE due 05,15/ 3024 400 32
Aozora Bank Ltd.

3o S10% duse 08707/ 2021 T T2l
Athene Global Funding

2L B6TS due 07012022 3, 650 AT
Avolon Holdings Funding Ltd

BTSN due 0215/2025 B} B0
5. 500% due 00,15/ 2023 0 255
Banco Santander Chile

L GT1% due 11/35/ 2021 Bix] ]
Bank of America Corp.

& 083E% due 1000072021 700 T
2o D% duse 03705, 2024 1 5} 1. 4789
Barclays Bank FLC

1. TT1% due OF /L2020 o 300
Barclays FLC

4. 005% due 087 10/2021 I, A0 1A
2R due 00102023 2, 50 L i
BOC Aviation Ltd

1. G duse 05022021 1, 2} L. 184
2o375% due 0871572021 I, T} 1. 700
2. To0% due 09118/ 2022 0 200
Baston Properties LF

. F25% due 0551573021 500 si0
Brizsor Operating Partnership LP

L. T37% due 0200/ 5022 1. i Uiz
Citibank M. A

O 97T% dues 05,00,/ 2022 400 Jon
Citigroup, Inec.

L. ATE% due 060073024 00 205
1. A8E% dus 0517,/ 202 o 10} 2. 079
L. THOR du 069,00 /02T 1., 30} 1. 309
1970 dues 0T 32023 ¥, o) 1, 489
Cooparatieve Rabobank LA

1. 701% dus O I0/2025 &, DO} 1. 99]
Credit Suisse Group AG

SO0 due 06127302 ¥, D) agd

Credit Suisse Group Fending Guornsey Ltd.
3. 4500 die 0416/ 2020

E
L2
=
B

118/230



2020 31

Danske Bask ASS

1o 844% due 06,712/ 3023 3

2. 800% due 06/10/2021

3. 001% due 0600,/ 7022

DES Group Holdings Ltd

1 G11% due 0725,/ 2022

DB Bamk ASA

O S6A% due 12/02/ 2022

First Abu Dhabi Bank PJSC
DL due D416/ 2002
Goldsan Bache Group, Inc.

1. 562% due 11,15,/ 3021

L 020% due 077242023
2O100% due 0436/ 2022

L. 350% due D4/2ES2021
Goodsas 1.5 Finance Tws LLC
G 000% due 0G/22/ 2022
Hitachi Capital UK PLC

L 06T% due 11750/ 2020

HSHC Holdings PLC

L 36E% due 08182024 (1)
LAY due 0810/ 50

ICICT Bank Led

31050 due 08/12/3020

ING Groep KV

2oA51% dues  10/DE20E

L 525% due 0000,/ 2022
Internationa]l Lease Finance Carp.
BGES% due 0015/ 2022
Jacksom Hational Life Global PFunding
L% due 0627/ 2022
TPorgan Chase & Co.

1. 9335 due 0753 2004
22000 due 10342023

KEB Hama Bank

E151% due 10/02/ 2022
LeasePlan Corp. NY

SOBTEN due 0SS0
Lloyds Banking Group FLC

1. 995% due 06/21/2021
S.80T% due 11002023

Mirae Asset Daewoo Co. Led
4. 125% due 10707/ 3021
Mitsubishi UFT Financial Group, Inc.
1. (RS doe 00022023
1.275% due 023273022

L. TEY% due OF 25/ 3022

1o EE% due 0613/ 2021
Mitsubishi UFT Leaso & Finance Co. Ltd.
T B52% due 08/16/3022

& To0% due 0202020
Mizsho Financial Group, Inc.
o due 06,25,/ 2024
1.310% die 0238 302

1. GE3% due 0913/ 2023

1. 645% dus 06,11/ 2022
Margan Stanley

0. 751% due 0302025

1. 665% due 06,08/ 3024
SRS i 10242023

119/230
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B4
(FE
453
a1
606
1. 440

oy

28]

1897
3. 911

1. 185

2. 697

309
412
l. 865
4, 723
763
T4
3. 569
2. 362
1. 278
1. 190
2. 256

I, T892
100



2020 31

Hationwide Building Society

2. 0005 due DR/I7/0023 $

4. 622% due D4/05,/ 2020

MatWost Markets PLC

L.TTEN due 06362022

Navient Corp.

5. 000 due 1036,/ 2020

Nomura Holdings, Inc.

2 645K due O/ 15,/2025

Mardoa Bank Abp

1. 303% due 08,30/ 3023

ORIX Corp.

2 650% due 4/13/2021

L0crs due 07/ 18,/2022

3. 200% due 0019/ 2022

Park Aorospace Holdings Ltd,

3. 625% due 03/15/3021

5. 2500 due 0816/ 2022

Piper Sandler Cos.

4. 740% due 10152021

b, 200% due 1015,/ 2023

Qatari Diar Finance Q8C

5. D00 due OF /2073020

QB Fimance Ltd.

1. 281% due 0212/ 3022

1. 5564 due 06,02/ 2022

1. T13% due 06,°31,/2021

Royal Bank of Scotland Group PLC
1 862% due 06,15,/ 2023

2. T6E% due 0625/ 2024

Santandor Holdings USA, Inc.
4-450% due 1203, 2021

Santander UK Group Holdings FLC
337N due 0005,/ 3024

Santander UK PLC

O 070% due D6/00/3021

L 052% due 110573021

T 100% due O1/13/3023

SBA Towsr Trust

L 8TT% due 07,09 2021

Scontre Group Trust 1

23T due 0202

Sinochem Overseas Capital Co. Lid
4. 50C% due 11/12/3020
Skandinnviskn Enskilda Bankon AB
1. A26% dus |2/02/ 3022

5L Green Operating Partnership LP
1. 366% due 08,16, 2021
Springleaf Finsnce Corp.

7. 700% due 10,/00/ 2021

B.250% due 12/15/2020

Standard Chartersd FLC

2.006% due 09,10/ 2022

3. TEE% due 0DG/21/3025

Starwood Property Trust, Inc.
dGES% due 0200,/2021

State Bank of India

4. 000% due 01/20/ 2022

Sumitomo Mitsui Financial Growp, Inc.
1. 875% due 10182022

E001% due O7/12,/2022

20421% due 071452021
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2020 31

SN BHE

{Fhkgir) {Fhib{)
Swodbank AB
AT due 03714/ 2002 3 500 L]
Synchrony Bank
3. G50% due 06,"24,/2021 &, 00 05
85 Group AG
L3425 due 08/15/0003 500 A
1. 5TE% due 06,23/ 2023 1. G5 1. 570
WEA Fimance LLC
32500 due 10053020 God 501
Tells Farge & Co.
1 due E030 3023 1. 400 1401
L G2EN due OF22/3002 500 516
Wells Fargo Bank M A
O, O due 06107 /200 1, 500 1, 402

133, 730

Abb¥ie, Imc.
O T2% due 05,/20/2021 1. DO G
O 811% due 111972021 300 208
L 024% due 11/21/2022 1. 000 g
>, 1500 due 11S19/H02 1, 400 1, 426
3758 due 110453021 500 20
Altria Group, Inc.
J.R00% due 02714/ D022 500 521
American Honda Finance Corp.
L 115% due 0611/ 20210 1. 400 1, 393
1. G605 due 09,106, 2021 500 g
Arrow Electronics, Ine.
3. 500% due (/01,2002 B0 616
Aviation Capital Group LLC
L. 300% due 06/01,/2021 400 368
Lo A3 duwe 07, 3003021 L. A0 1. 268
TUSTES due DL/20/ 2002 1200 1, 009
G Ta0% due (406,202 00 186
7. F28% due 10/15/2000 B8 584
BAT Capital Corp.
L. 272% due D/15/2022 () 4. 600 1,701
Bayer U.5. Finance II LLC
1. 750% due 12/15/2013 1100 1,072
1. 816% due 06/25/2021 100 b
3. 500% due 06/25/2021 100 1]
BMW Finance NV
1 395H due DE/12/2002 1, 500 1, 451
BdW U.5, Capital LLC
0. 9340% due 0F/ 132021 2475 2. 45
Broadeom Corp.
2, 300% due 01/15/2021 1 500 1. 508
Broadeom, Inc.
31254 due 415/ 2021 3. 000 3,023
Caterpillar Financial Services Corp.
0. TTE% due 06/17,/3021 ) anl
Central Nippon Expressway Co. Ltd.
0, 852% due 0C/15/2002 7. 000 6,939
2 11T due 04232021 300 3035
1Y due 02162028 2 201
2 29T due 05/05/2022 30 i
2. 203% due 0423 2021 1, 000 1, 007
2.56T% due 11/02/2021 L. DO L0322
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Chartor Commnications Operating LLC

39TS due D2U/00SI024 $

0T due 07,23/ 2020

A A6 due O7/23, 2002

Cigna Corp.

1. 463% due 09/17/2021

2. 109 due 0715,/ 2023

Ol Industrial Capital LLC
45755 due 04,00/3021

Conagra Bramds, Ine.

3 800 due 10STRSI0Z0
Constollation Brands, Inc.
L9 dus 11/ Fas 202l

ME Funding LLC

4 000% due 08,01/ 2020

Daimler Finance North Aserice LLC
0. B0S% due 02/32/3021

L211% dwe 1106/ 2021

1238 due 02T /2002

1. 262% due 0215,/ 2022

Dancne 5. A

2.07T% due 1100272021

Dell Imternational LLC

4. 420% due D615/ 2021 (1)

D% Borton, Ine.

43755 due 081570022

EMC Corp.

2650% due 06,/01/3020
Equifax, Ine.

1. 262% due 08,/ 15/2021

2. 300% due 06,08/ 3021

Ford Moter Credit Co. LLC

3. 937% due 01072021
Fresenius Medical Care UL 5. Finance II, Inc.
4. 125% due 10/15,/ 2020

GATX Corp.

1. 260% due 110673021

General Mills, Ime.

G G10% due 10,15,/ 2020

General Motors Co.

1. 274% due 08072020

General Mators Finamcial Co., Ime.
1. 600% due 11,06,/ 2021

2 170% due BL/09/ 2021

3 T0O% due 112472020
Harloy-Davideon Finsncial Services, Ine.
EOA00% due 06 15/3020

Hewlatt Packard Enterprise Co.
o 093% due 10062021

Hyundni Capital Aserica

1. 60% dus O3 1205020

L. GBS due 06, 18 2020

2.392% due 07,08,/ 2021

2.375% due 02/10/ 2023

T To0% due 09/ 1B/ 2020

JR50% due 03122021

Hyundai Capital Services, Inc.
2. G25% due 0992000
Imperial Brmnds Finance PLC
2. 900 due OF/21/2020

3 125 due O35,/ 2024

3. THO% due 0720/ 2022
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John Deers Capital Corp.

1o ATES due 06,08,/ 3022 3

Eraft Heinz Foods Co.
L 265% due 08,/10/2022
3 ATE% due 06/15/2021
Las Vegas Sands Corp.
L0 due 06252025
3 500% due 08/18/2026
Marriott Internatiosal, Ine.
L. GAS due 00083021

Mazca Corp.

3. 500% due M,/DL/3021

Mylan NV

3. 1500 due 06, 15,/3021

3. 750% due 12/15/2020

Hizsan Motor Acceptance Corp.
L T00% due OF/ 15/ 302
Lo 83E% due 06,21
1. 961% due 07/ 13/2022

065N due 06,/38,/3082

MNTT Fimance Corp.

1000 due OF/20/2021

NP BY

3. 8758 due DG/DL/3022

4. 125% due 06,/00/2021

1.G25% due 0E/15/2022

Deoidental Petrolouws Corp.

L. BA2% due 05/15,/3022

Pacific Kational Finance Pty Lid

1. G25% due 06,/23,/3000

Penske Truck Leasing Co. LP

3 300% due 04,0030

3. G50% due 07,38,/ 3021

Pentair Finance Sarl

& B25% due 0971572020

Reckitt Benckiser Treasury Services FLC

L T64% due 06,24/ 2022

Shire Acquisitions Investsents Ireland DAC
L A0S due 08553021

SMHC Aviation Capital Finamce DAC

& 000 due OF 152022

35500 due 4/ 15/2024

Spectra Energy Partners LP

0 due 06052020

Spirit AeroSystems, Inc.

1-541% due 06/ 15,/3021

Yolkswagen Group of America Finance LLC

L 06A% due 06242021

BTSN due 11132020

Vulcan Materials Co.

L. D00 due 0350073021

Westinghouss Air Brake Technologies Corp.
SIS due 0901573021

Woolworths Group Ltd.

4. 000 due 09222020

Limmor Biomet Holdings, Ine.

1. B02% due 0319/ 3021

footis, Inc.

B BLITS due 085073021
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2020 31

T A R4
(Fugir) ()

ATAT, Ine.

Lo3l4% due 02715/ 2003 :] 00 H 50

1. 964% due 0612/ 3024 3. 300 By 23

L. 165 due 0715/ 2021 1. 70 1710

Centrica PLC

L216% due 08725,/ 2020 ELL s 1]

Duke Emergy Corp

O 2% due 05142021 1 B 1, 508

Enbridge, Imc.

O 881% due 02/ 15/ 2022 3. 300 & 26

1 A41% due 06/15,/3020 HiN B0

Israel Electric Corp. Ltd

G BTE% due 06/21/3023 400 152

Sabine Pass Liquefaction LLC

S.R25% due 02/00/3021 4. 10 4.182

Sempra Enorgy

1. T15% due 01/15,/ 3021 150 7

Sincpec Group Overseas Develogment 2016 Lid.

TR0 due 05/03,/3021 2 202

Southern Power Co.

1. BEE% due 1200,/ 7020 500 £ At

Sprint Commsnications, Ine.

G 00O% due 11/15,/ 3082 400 126

Sprint Corp

71254 due 06153024 103 114

Yerizon Commnications, Ine.

L. 462% due 0615,/ 2025 log & S

L TA1% due 03716/ 2022 1. 61 1. 60
23, 868

A 260, 978

(i A EES 272, BTE)

ST 0. 2%

Dauphin, Pennsylvanin, Pencsylvania Higher Education Assistance Agency Rovenue Bonds, Series 2006

LL21% dus 10035,/ 2006 Oy b

Sacramento, California, Geoeral Obligetion Bonds, Series 2017

1110 dus O4/00 2047 i) 200

Salt Lake, Utah, Utsh State Board of Regents Revenue Bonds, Series 2017

O 91E% due 0035,/ 2057 157 153

v v 635

CH s 653}

ST SRR N 3. 1%

Fannie Mas

0 6% due 06,25,/ 2038 L3 141
L3185 due 425,/ 2023 3 3
Froddie Mac

1. 335% due 0315,/ 2037 (f) T3 70
1 335% due 1015,/ 3037 L. 458 1. 340
1. 335% due 08/ 15/2042 (1) i Tl
1. 385% due 01/15/2040 (F) B B2
L. 500% due 06725004 (1) 1, 253 L 208
2.5000% due 10255048 () 3484 3. 547
Ginnde Mao

L. 4f6% due 020/ 2061 &0 o]
L T16% due 08,720,/ 3066 110 111
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SN BHE

{FHhfe) {FHk{}
1. S16% due 05,/20/ 2066 5 154 5 164
1. 8864 dise 07,00, 2066 53 83
1. 586% due 11/20/2066 180 i81
T, 500% due 01/30,/2045 () 1,071 1, 007
L500% due 10/20/204% () 1. 554 2002
TOETEY due 11/00/206T (F) Wl 151
4 A I 13, 367

(Ee eSS 13, 356)
R B R 5. %

Treasury Inflation Protocted Securities (b)

0. 3TE% due 07/ 15/ 2025 7. 075 T4l
0. TRO% due 0715/ 2028 (T) 18, 218 1B, %13
LSRR 2 i 24, 249

ACE Securitios Corparation Hose Eguity Loan Trist

O HES due 042572004 H3 $25
AREIT Trust

L 16A% due |1S0AS2085 436 464
Lo 20d% due D9 143036 500 477
O8E3% due DM 1L203T 1, EOd L. 103
Atrium Hotel Partfolio Trust

L LK% due 06 15/2035 o0 [iT)
B Cosmercial Mortgage Securities Trust

1. 2340% due 0415/ 2006 400 376
L A84% due 0315/ 20034 400 HES
Bancorp Commercial Mortgage Trust

I 084% due 00715/ 2035 163 42
Lo 2346% due 09715/ 2036 191 473
Bayview Oppartunity Master Fund IVa Trust

& TS due 0028200 21 21
Bear Stonrns Adjustsble Bste Morigsge Trust

4. 016% due 04/ 25/ 2003 a9 "]
4. 1% due 08,25,/ 2003 ] 23
Bour Stoarns Asset-Backed Securities I Trust

O T2E% due 09725,/ 2034 e nis
Bear Stonrns Second Lisn Trust

L.518% due OFS25/3036 B | 570
Brass Mo. 8 PLC

1. 085% due |1/16,/ 2065 HE ME
Canterbury Finance Me.l FLC

1. GA3% due 05163066 GElM I, () 1, 188
Citigroup Mortgage Loan Trust

3284 due 0975/ 2069 ] 87 185
Citigroup Mortgage Loan Trust, Inc.

0. 445% due 1125/ 2006 Bs3 67
Coamorcinl Wortagnge Trust

0828 due OGS 10/ 2046 32 32
Countrywide Assot-Backed Certificates

0. A65% due 08,25/ 3036 240 235
Credit Suisse Nortgege Capital Certificates

3. 543 due 08,265,258 70 ]
Crodit Suisse Mortgage Capital Trust

9% due 07716/ 2032 00 281
& 106% due 10272059 =l 695
33224 due 10/25/2068 1849 183
C3 First Boston Mortgege-Backed Trust

0. 905% due 10,25,/ 2004 11 11

125/230



2020 31
Eurcpoan Losn Conduit Ne. 36 DAC
L DOO% due 0217,/ 2030 EUR
Finance Asorica Mortgege Loan Trust
0 N due 0825,3034 |
Finsbury Sqaare FLC
O 00O due O 15,/2070 Gap

1. 467% due 0615,/ 0069

1. T22% due |2/ 1673069

Firstasc Mortgage Funding Trust Moo 4

O SR due 0008,/ 2045 ]
Fromont Homse Loan Trust

O 0E% due OS50 2035

GPUT Ltd.

L OTI% due 11/20/2035

G5 Mortgage Securities Corporation Trust

0. 884% due 07/ 15/2032

Hawksmoor Mortguge Funding PLC

1. 287% due 06,25,/ 2053 Ll
Hawksmoor Mortgages

1. 287% due 06/15/2063

Holmes Master Issuer PLC

1. a75% due F0S15/2054 L]
1. G35 due 10U/15,/ 3054

HPLY Trust

L 1B4% due 11/15/ 2036

Ispac QUE Trust

O ALES due 05152005

0. B0E% due 03/25/ 3035

JPcrgan Chase Comsercial Mortgege Securities Trust
1 09% due 06,15,/ 2005

I 184% due 0615/ 3032

Lo due 20 EaS 2000

Lanark Master Issuer FLC

34534 due 12/12/2069

Legacy Mortgage Asset Trost

3. 435% due 06/15,/3068

G To0% due o257 2009

London Wall Mortgage Capital FLC

L 142% due 11715/ 2048 ap
Long Beach Mortgege Loan Trust
1. L% due 4,25,/ 2035 3

MASTR Assit-Hacked Securitios Trust
O B6E% due 062520

WFL Lid,

L. 2088 due 12/35, 203

Mill City Mortgage Loan Trust

T 750U due 08/25/7055

Morgan Stanley Asset-Backed Securities Capital I, Ime. Trust
L Q0% due 06,35, 1034

Morgan Stanloy Capital I Trust

1. 184% due 06/15/5036

G OL% die 0611/ 5042

Motel & Trust

L L04% due 06,15/ 2034

New Residentinl Mortgage Loan Trust
2. T30 due O7/25/2059

oTEOR due 11/05/2055

1. 50O due 0635/ 2058

Nomura Resecuritization Trust

2. 404% due 10/35/ 2096

MovaStar Mortgage Funding Trust

O BIE% due 0L/I5/ 2036
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2020 31

SN BHE

{(FHRfE) {FHi{E)
Permanent Master Issuer FLC
1. 5058 due O7,15,/2058 L] pig= 1 5 250
1. T65% due 0715/ 2058 00 ;
PFP Ltd.
L. L54% due 4142036 1, 500 1. 750
Lo 234% due 04, 14,/2037 2, 200 2084
Precise Mortgage Funding PLC
0. o6k due 10)16,/2056 GHP I, 0a7 1.320
Residemtial Mortgage Securities 31 PLC
L 7375 due 05,00,/ 3065 164 203
Ripon Mortgages FLC
L. 056% due 08,30,/ 3056 3, B 4,708
Silverstone Master lssuer FLC
1. 235% due 01/21,/2070 b 52
L G750 due D1/20S3070 . 161 161
Stanwich Mortgage Loan Co. LLC
3TN due 081553024 4 235
Structured Asset Investisent Loan Trust
O TIE% due 0625,/ 2034 1,822 1. 733
Tharaldson Hotel Portfolio Trust
O S due 11103034 510 To6
Tewa Point Mortgage Trust
L. 302% due 07, 30,/ 2045 GBP L 31% 1 6L4
Tewd Point Mortgage Funding
L ATES due 0230,/ 2054 563 LiL)
Towd Point Morigage Funding Granited PLC
LGTT% due 10030,/ 3051 238 =t}
Tewd Point Mortgage Trust
1. 168% due 05,25,/ 2058 L ] LEL)
1o 165% due 10725,/ 5059 hag 502
Trinity Square FLG
1. 818% due 07/15,/3051 GHP 132 163
B5-Barclays Commercial Mortgage Trust
O 08 due 47102046 § HHE 306
Warwick Finance Residential Mortgages Ko One FLC
L5225 due 06,/21/2048 Lr il £l L.012
Wells Fargo Cosmercial Mortgage Trust
O BLS% due 127152036 § 1,351 1. 3249
Ld1% due 1270373031 HF 63
1o 234% due 0715/ 3046 M 5]
4. 218% due 0715/ 2046 00 129
WFHES Comsercial Mortgage Trust
(TS due 12015/ 2045 Bz 631
F=H—T s Ry FEREN 63, 344
(e RLES06, 095)

Tl b Lo 2 EES 120X
Arber Realty Collatoralized Loam Obligation Ltd

L 174% due 12715/ 2027 GO0 476
Arbor Realty Comsorcial Real Estate Motes Litd.

L 334% due 08,15,/ 2037 o0 285
Arbear CLO IV DAC

O BTO% due 01/ 1573030 EUR 400 439
Atrium XIT

L 025% due (4722, 2027 3 ga2 72
B CLO Led

L 90E% due (M4, 16,2026 218 27
Benefit Street Parimers CLO ¥II Ltd,

L. 915% due 07/ 18/ 2027 TES T44
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R B

{FHkgr ) {F-hi{E}
Block Dinsord CLO Dosignated Activity Co,
EOARTY due 10062029 1 tisth 5 s
Bumpar UK Finance FLC
0. GBE% duw 1220,/ 2008 [riy 2, 500 3. 075
Carlyle Globol Market Strategios Buro CLO DAC
0L TI0% due D6/21/32029 EUR R 15
Cent CLO 19 Ltd.
2. 171% due §0/I9/ 2005 3 a1 kL]
Chesapeake Punding II LLC
1O due (8, 15/ 2029 48 249
3 E0% due 08152000 sal BO3
Commorcinl Industrial Finsnce Corporstion Funding Ltd.
1. 851% due 1025,/ 3027 00 363
Contogo CLO 1T BY
(. G57% due 11/16/2026 EUR 1] 1. 085
Dartry Park (L0 DAC
O B30% due [MS28/ 2029 57 285
Dell Equipsent Finance Trust
2U2000% due 06,22 3022 § O L]
Dorchester Park CLO DAC
2.005% due 04/ 30/ 2028 BOO 193
Dryden 46 Buro CLO BY
0. B80% due 01/ 15,/ 2030 R 400 142
ECMC Group Student Loan Trust
0. 918% due 02727/ 2068 § 542 523
1. 2158% doe 05,25/ 2067 = 134
EFS Voluntesr LLC
1. 841% due 10,25/ 2035 127 s
Evans Grove CLO Led
1 2001% due 06,28,/ 3028 3,37 4,202
Fair Osks Loan Funding IT DAC
19008 dus 07/ 15,2031 EUR 1, 800 2002
Figueroa CLO Ltd
2 119% due 0115,/ 2027 5 s rd 281
Flagship Credit Auto Trust
2U530% due 1016,/ 2023 186 250
Fard Aute Securitization Trust
2.321% due 1015/ 2023 CAD 1, 200 73
Fard Credit Floorplan Master Owner Trust A
0. B8N due 10/15/ 2023 ] 1 (5]
0. TRAS due 00 15,/3024 GO T
Gallatin CLO IX Led
2155 due D120/ 2008 1,087 1. 077
GWF Floorplan Owner Revolving Trust
O 5% due 06,15,/ 2022 400 s
GoldentTree Loan Masagesent ILS. CLO Ltd.
2. 083% due /002029 1. 100 1. 084
Haleyom Loan Advisers Funding Ltd
2.065% due (/02027 542
Hertz Fleot Lease Funding LP
3. 230% due 0510/ 2032 B0 624
Jemestown CLO IV Ltd.
1. 905 due 0715/ 2026 01 194
LoanCore Issusr Ltd
L. 314% due 0515/ 3006 T T
LP Credit Card Asset-Backed Securities Master Trust
2.323% due 0830/ 3024 (i o2
Marathon CLO W Ltd,
Lo 244% due 112055027 1, 370 L. 346
Marlette Punding Trust
100 due 0716/ 2029 T i
3. T10% due 12715/ 2028 160 1658
Master Credit Card Trust IT
0. 661% due 07,20/ 3024 BOG L]
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MMAF Equipsent Finance LLC
L0208 due 07/ 12/2021 3
Mountain View CLO LLC

FO266% due [0S16/2029

Mountain View CLO X Ltd.

2 130% due 1013/ 2027

Mavient Frivote Educaticn Lonn Trust
X 660% due [2/15°2028

Ravient Student Loan Trust
3430 due 12715,/ 2059

MNolnet Student Loan Trust

. B6% due 0927/ 2008

09655 due 0925/ 2065

0. 008% due 08,25, 2067

L0IE% due 02/25,/ 2066

1. 065% due 0627,/ 2067

Ocean Trails CLO IV

L. 334% due 08132025

OCF CLO Led

2.005% due 07152027

Daclain Financial Issunnce Trust
2. 070% due 09 102002

DSCAR UL 5. Punding Trust IX LLC
3o 150% due 0810,/ 2021

Dscar IL5. Punding X LLC

3o 100% due 4011/ 2022

Palpor Square CLO Ltd

L. 242% due 08/ 15/ 3026

Penarth Master Iszsuer FLC

0. 632% due 0918,/ 2022

O 722% due 0718/ 2023

PFS Financing Corp.

0. THE die 152024

SLC Stwdent Loan Trust

0. 452% due 05/15/ 3029

0. 851% due 03715/ 2027

51M Private Education Loan Trust
AN due DB/16/30M2

5S1M Student Loan Trust

1. 081% due 0,/ 26,/ 2025

1. 210% due 1215,/ 2037

*oR01% due 4,25,/ 2003

Sofi Consuser Loan Frogras LLC
2. 770% due 06/35/ 2026

5oFi Consumer Loan Program Trust
T 000% dus 0535028

30108 due M35 2028

20N due OXCTSI028

$oFi Professicoal Loan Program LLC
1. 118% due D/25/ 2009

20208 due 10,27/ 2036

Safi Professicnal Loan Program Trust
3. 0808 due 01,25/ 2048

Sound Point Clo XIV Ltd.

& 1953% due 033/ H000
SpringCastle Funding Asset-Backed Notes
3. 2008 due 06,/27,/3036

THL Credit Wind River CLO Ltd
2095 due 0115/ 2026

Tikehaw CLO BY

O GOCR due 08,0/ 2028 ELR
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2020 31

R B

{(Fhkgr) { F-hi{i
TRTL Issuer Ltd
1. 334% due 10,15,/ 2034 $ 1. 004 5 965
Upstart Securitization Trust
2.684% due 00/20/3000 311 d06
2. 507% due 06,20/ 3029 oz 2096
Yenture XVII CLO Ltd.
20990 due 0415/ 3027 248 2
Yoya CLO Ltd
L711% due 07,/25/ 3026 98 9%
Whiteliorse IX Ltd.
2.295% due 0717/ 2026 A6 46
T b o« Aoy BENGH 51, 878
(MR A2, 914)

Canada Govermsent Bond

1. 5008 due 05,/01/2022 CAD 110, Ok 7. 403
Export-Import Back of India

13745 due 08/20/ 2022 3 2,35 & 268
Qatar Goverrment International Bond

EATSN due D602/ 2021 1, 000 L. 012
g 10; 663
(R BRLENS 10, 545)

Sumitomo Mitsui Banking Corp.
CB91% due 11006/ 2021 1, §00 1. 799

Amarican Honds Finance Corp,

L 90% duwe O7/30/32020 () SO0 2ua

L OTE% doe 060G/2020 (d) 1, B0k 1. 453

OL04% due OESOE/Z020 (o) 2, T 2. 700

Bayer Corp.

365% due 08032000 (e} 2, 400 o 306

BF Capital Markets FLC (o)

L G due 06,08/ 5020 3, 000 2 a7

1. 805 due 0,06, 2020 1, D00 1. D0Q

Gonoral Dynemics Corp.

L2608 due OTSI0/3020 (c) 1, DDk kit

HEH Portfolicmanagesent Acell

0 T22% doe 101718/3021 (<) o] ]

Schlusberger Investment 5. A

L 96S% due 10C27/2000 (e} 1, DOG 1]

Sholl Intermational Finance BV (e}

2. 103% due 02/0G/2021 GO0 495

30 due 00 19,/2021 &, DO 3. 667

Sygenta Wilmington, Inc.

&% due D605/ 2020 (o) 1, 200 1. 200

Toyota Motor Credit Corp.

L. 4258% due 0730/ 2020 () gLt §949

Walt Disney Co.

L931% due O7/14/32020 (c) 500 500
20.743
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2020 31
T BHE
{Fhikgr) {F-Hi{i)
Lt (o) Lo2%
] 5, 000
Australin and Now Zealand Banking Group Ltd.
0 010% due 06012020 AD 3 Z
O G10% dug 06/001,/2020 3 3 3
0, 050% due 06/02/2020 NED T 1
Bank of Nova Scotia
O, 010% due 06,00,/ 2020 3 2 2
0 MO due 0600/ 2020 CAD 276 200
BNP Paribas Bank
(0. 27080 due 06/01,/2020 ¥ a] I
Brown Brothers Harrisen & Co.
(0. GO0} due 06022020 1114 2 o
(0. 270%) due 06/01,/2020 ¥ 1 ]
0. 010% due 06,/01,/2020 GRF 3 1
OO0 die 06/01,/2020 CARD 14 10
Citibank M. A
0, 010% due 06/01/2020 i 95 95
DES Bamk Ltd.
O 010 due 06/01/5020 15 15
JPMorgan Chase Bank B A
0. 010% due 0601/ 2020 L 190
MUFG Bank Ltd.
(0. 970%) due DB/ 2020 ¥ I, o2 11
MHational Australis Bamk Ltd
O 010% due 06002020 AlD T &
0 010% due 06013020 5 2 2
Sumitomo Mitsul Bankimg Corp.
(0, Z00%) due (/012020 ¥ pairy r'd
O 010% due 06/01/ 3020 GhE 7 =z
o 010% due 0600/ 2020 3 w2 H2
Somitoso Mitsui Trust Bank Lid.
{0, 27000 due 0650072020 ¥ 14 o
O 010% due 06002020 Gl 207 ]
O 010 due 0601/ 2020 ] 136 134
1,309

]

0, 09% due 06,02/ 2020 57 57

O L due 085,06/ 5020 Cor] ol
G956

I R S B 29, B0G
(A0, 7T47)
SRAEER AN (2) 107.9% H 463,931
(e EE346T, 651)
AT S TR

(g) (i) (038 (1,127)
(R REUEE i 7 LS 7 A, N $016))
FOEORERES EIHRM, W (7. 6N {32, 605}
MR 100,08 H 430, 199
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PIMCO Short Term Strategy
Statement of Financial Position
July 31, 2020

(Expressed in U. 5. Dollars)

Assets July 31, 2020
Financial assets at fair value through profit or boes (Mote 2.2, 5, 6) 5 34,351,706
Cash and cash equivalents (Maote 2.1) 188,423
Prepaid fees 104,058
Recavacles for,
Securities sold (Mote 2.4) 440,180
Units iesued (Note 2,10, 3) 107,024
Total gssels 35,192,392
Liabilities
Financial iabiliias at fair value through profit or loss (Note 2.2, 5, 8) 884, 852
Payables for:
Units repurchased (Note 2.10, 3) 185,378
Imvestment advisary fees 38709
Distribution fees (Mot 8.1C) 34,781
Professional fees (Note 8.1F) 19,250
Cuslody fees (Nobe 5.18) 7,041
Faa agent fees (Note 5.28) 3.180
Transfer agent fees (Mote 8.1E) 2,750
Purchase of Investment in the Selected Fund (Note 2.4) B4
Agent member company fees {Note 3.20) 206
Liabilithes {excluding squity) 3 1,278,109
Equity (being net assets atiributable to the holdars of units) 5 33,8914 283

The accompanying notes ara an integral pan of these financial staterments.
1
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For the Period from July 29, 2019 (Commencement of Operations) through July 31, 2020

{Expressed in U.5. Dollars)

Income
Met incomeiloss) from financial instrurments at FYTPL

Met realized loss on financial assets and liahiities at fair value
through profit or loss (Note 2.11, 7)

Met change in unrealized deprecialion on financial assets and
ligbilities et fair value through prefit or loss (Note 2.2, 211, 7}
Interest income (Nole 2.11)
Net realized loss on foreign currency fransactions (Nole 2.5)
Nel change in unrealized depreciation on foreign currancy transiations
{Note 2.8)
Total incomailoss)

Expenses
Diztributian fess (Mot 8.1C)
Invasmment advisory feas
Custody fees (Nots 6.18)
Crganization expenses
Feas agen: lees (Note 8.2B)
Professional fees (Mote 2.1F)
Tiansfer agent fees (Mole 8.1E)
Administrator fees (Note 8.1A4)
Agent member company faes (Note & 20)
Tolal expenses

Operating loss bafere finance costs

Total comprahensive loss {being decrease in net assets attributable to

the holders of units from oparations)

July 31, 2020

(2.389,213)

{161, 864)
154
{116, 4685)

{620}

(2,668 108)

115,003
67,085
34,728
28,817
75,205
15,250
13,888

8,282
1,917

2275

{2 980.383}

(2 980 363)

™ This relales W nel income from financial instruments measured st fair value through profit or loss (FVIFLY)
including realized and unrealzed gainslosses on financial assets and Rabiities at fair value through profit or loss.

The gccompanying roles ane an integral part of these financial statemanis.
2
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PIMCO Short Term Strategy
Statement of Changes in Equity
For the Period from July 29, 2019 (Commencement of Operations) through July 31, 2020
(Expressed in U. 5. Dollars)

At July 29, 2019 ([Commencement of Operations) 5 -
Izeua of units (Noke 3) 41 654 188
Repurchases of units (Nota 2.8, 3) [4,758,523)
Total comprehensive loss (being decrease in net assets

sttributabia te the holders of units from operations) {2 980 383)
At July 31, 2020 -1 33914283

The accampanying notes are an integral part of these financial statemants.
3
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PIMCO Short Term Strategy
Statement of Cash Flows
For the Period from July 29, 2019 (Commencement of Operations) through July 31, 2020

(Expressed in U.5. Dollars)

Cash flows from operating activities: SJulby 31, 2020
Total comprehensive loss (being decrease in net assats attributable to
the helders of units fram cparatians) 4 (2,880 383)

Adjustments to recancils tolal comprehansive incoma (baing increase in
net assets stributable to the holders of units from operations) to cash

provided by operating acthvities:
Purchases of iInvestment in the Selected Fund 140,794,463)
Procesds from disposition of Investment in the Selected Fund 7335270
et (paymants) from setdement of forward conracts (2,458 B28)
Mel realized loss on financial azeats and kabilities al lair value
threugh profit or loss 2,388,313
Met change in unrealzed depreciation on financial assets and
liabdithes, 2t falr value through profit or loss 161,964
{Increase) in recefvables for securities sold {440,180)
(Increase) in prapaid fees (104,055)
Incraass in payablas for purchase of Invesiment in the Selected Fund 244
Incraass in other payables 106,027
Net cash |used in) operating activities (36, 7E4,588)

Cazh flows from financing activities:
Proceeds from units issued, net of change In receivables for units

issued 41,547,165

Rapurchases of units, net of change in payables for units

repurchased 4.573.147)
Mat cash provided by financing activities 38 874.018
Met increase in cash and cash aguivalents 189,423

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period =
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period (Note 2.1) g 182,423

Supgplementary information on cash flows from cperating adlivitias
Intanes! received 5 154

0 Other payables comprise of investment advisary fees, distribution fees, professional fees, custody fees, fee agent fees, transfar
2gent fees and agent member company fees, as disclesed in the Statement of Financlal Position.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of thesa financial statements.
4
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PIMCO Short Term Strategy
Motes to Financial Statements (continued)
For the Period from July 29, 2019 (Commencement of Operations) through July 31, 2020

(Expressed in U.5. Dollars)

1. ORGANEZATION

PIMCO Short Term Strategy (the “Series Trust”) is a Saries Trust of Credit Suisse Universal Trust (Cayman) Il {the
“Trust™), an open-ended umbrella unit trusl constituted by a Master Trusl Deed deted December 2, 2013 under
Cayman Islands law. The Series Trust was established pursuant 1o a8 Supplemental Trust Deed dated July 5, 2013
and executed by Elian Trustes (Cayman) Limited (the “Trustee”), a trust company incorporated under the laws of the
Cayman Islands, The Series Trust commenced operations on July 29, 2019,

The Trust is an exempted unit trust under the Trusts Law (Revised) of the Cayman Islands and registered under the
Mutual Funds Law (Revised) of the Cayman Islands on January 22, 2014,

The principal offica for the Trustee (and therefore the Series Trust) is 190 Elgin Avenue, George Town, Grand
Cayman KY1-8007, Cayman [slands.

The manager of the Serles Trust is Credit Suisse Management (Cayman) Limitad (the ‘Manager’).

The Administrater, Custedian and Transfer Agent of the Series Trust Is Brown Brothers Harriman & Co. (the
“Administrater”, “Custodian” and “Transfar Agent’).

Cradit Suisse Intemational scts as the Fee Agent (the “Fee Agent”) and Cumency Adminisirator (the “Cumency
Administrator”).

Credit Suisse Securities (Japan) Limited acts as the Agent Membar Company (the “Agent Member Company”).
The Investment Manager of the Senes Trust is PIMCO Japan Ltd {the “Investment IManager).

The Manager has authorized SMEC Nikko Securities Inc. to act as the Distributor (the "Distributor) of the units in
Japan.

The Series Trust is denominated in U, S. Dollars ("USD" or *§7). One dlass of unils in the Series Trust is currently
available for issue: TRY Class Units. The TRY Class Units are denominated in Turkish Lira ('TRY").

The investment objective of the Series Trust is o seek maximum current income, consistent with preservation of
capital and daily liquidity, by investing indirectty in a diversified portfolio of mainly investment grade debt securities
denominaled in U.S. Dollars. The Series Trust seeks to achieve its investment abjective by investing substantially all
of the assets of the Series Trust into the Class C (USD) Class Units of PIMCO Shor-Term Sirategy (the "Selected
Fund").

The Selecled Fund is a series trust of PIMCO Bermuda Trust, an umbrella unit trust established under the laws of
Barmuda as a multi-series trust (the "Umbrella Trust”).

The investment ohjecive of the Selected Fund is to seek maximum current income, consistent with presenvation cf
capital and dally liquidity. Pacific Investment Management Company LLC. which has experlise in managing fixed
income instruments, is acting as both manager of the Selected Fund (the "SF Manager”) and investment adviser of
the Selecled Fund (the "SF Investment Adviser”). The base currency of the Class C (USD) Class Units is USD. in
constructing the portfolio of the Selected Fund. the SF Manager and SF Investment Advisar sesk fo ensure high
liquidity and stability by controlling interest rate and credit righs.

The Investment Manager of the Series Trust shall have day-te-day investment dedision-making and ongeing
maonitoring responsibility over the portion of the Series Trusl's portfolio comprising the Selected Fund and USD cash
and money market securilies (the "Subadvised Partfolio).

At July 34, 2020, the Series Trust held 7.9% of the Selected Fund's net assets,
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PIMCO Short Term Strategy

Notes to Financial Statements [continued)

For the Period from July 29, 2013 (Commencement of Operations) through July 31, 2020
{Expressed in U5 Dollars)

Currently the Selected Fund has six Classes of units - Class AUD, Class C (USD), Class J (JPY), Class J (UsD),
Class JPY and Class USD. The Series Trust invests into the Selected Fund by purchasing the Selecled Fund's
participating shares in the Class C (USD). The Selected Fund allows repurchases of these shares on any business
day.

Mavements in the fair value of the Selected Fund's portfolio and comresponding movements in the fair value of the
Selected Fund may expose the Series Trust to a less.

Final Repurchase Day

The Series Trust will continue until the earlier of December 1, 2183 and the earfiest practicable repurchase day
following the occummence of a compulsory repurchase event (the “Final Repurchase Day”), unless terminated earlier in
accordance with the provisions of the Trust Deed,

If the Trustee and the Manager agree that all of the units are compulsorily repurchased (such event, a “Compulsory
Repurchase Event").

Upon the cooummence of @ Compulsory Repurchase Event, each unit is repurchased on the Final Repurchase Day al
the final repurchase price per unit. The final repurchase price per unit of a class of unils is calculated by the
Administrator in its sole discretion in accordance with the Offering Memaorandum and the Appendix 32 as the nel
asset value "Met Assel Value® being the value of its total aszets minus its liabilities including accrued fees and
expenses) par unit of such elass of units on the Final Repurchase Day (or if such day is not also a valuation day the
immediately preceding valuation day). Repurchase Day is each dealing day which is also a day on which no Series
Trust disruption event occurs andlor such other day or days as the Manager may from time to time determine in
respect of the Series Trust Unitholder is able to receive an amount in réspect of each unit of a class of units
repurchased cn any Repurchase Day prior to the Final Repurchase Day equal {o the Net Asset Value per unit of such
class of unils as al the relevant Repurchase Day (or if that Repurchase Day i not also a valuation day the
immediately preceding wvaluation day) (the "Repurchase Price”). There is no repurchase fee applied lo the
Repurchase Price in respact of each unit baing rapurchased.

The financizl statements were authorized for issue on November 30, 2020,
2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are set oul below. These
polisies have been consistently applied 1o all the periods presented, unless otherwise stated. The financial
statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reperfing Standards (IFRS). The
pregeration of finandal statements in accordance with IFRS requires the use of cerlain critical accounling estimates
and requires the Trustas and the Manager to exercise their judgment in the process of applying the Seres Trust's
accounting policies. Areas whers assumplions and estimates are significant to the financial statements are disclosed
in Mote 4. Actual results may differ from these astimalas.

The Seres Trust has adopted Investment Entiies {Amendments to IFRS 10, IFRS 12 and IAS 27) (2012} (the
Amendments). Management concluded that the Series Trust meets the definition of an investment entity.

Classification and measurameant of financial assets and financial liabilities

IFRS § contains three principal classification categories for financial assets: measured at amorlized cosl, fair valug
through profit and loss (FVTPL) and fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI). The classification of
financial assets under IFRS 8 is generally based on the business model in which a financial asset is managed and its
conlractual cash flow characteristics.

On initial recognition, the Seres Trust classifies financial assets as measured at amortized cost or FVTPL.
A financial asset is meszured st amordized cost if it meets both of the following conditions and is not designated as at
FVTFL.
i) Itis held within a business model whose objective is to hold assels to collect confractual cash flows;
and,
iy Ite contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are sclely represant payments of
principal and interest (SPPI).
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PIMCO Short Term Strategy

Motes to Financial Statements (continued)

For the Period from July 29, 2018 (Commencement of Operations) through July 31, 2020
(Expressed in U.5. Dolfars)

A financial asset is measured at fair value through profit or loss if any of the following apply:

it Its confractual terms do not give nse to cash flows on specified dates thal are solely payments of
principal and imterest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding;

i) It is not hald within a business medel whose objective is either to collect contractual cash flows, or to
bath collect contractual cash flows and sell;

i} At initial recognition, it is imevocably designated as measured at FVTPL when deing so eliminates or
significantly reduces a measurement or recognifion inconsistency that would otherwise arise from
measuring assets or liabilities or recognising the gains and losses on them on diffierent bases,

In assessing whether the contractual cash flows are SPPI, the Series Trust considers the conlraciual lerms of the
instrument. This includes assessing whether the financial asset contains a contractual term that could change the
timing or amount of conlractual cash flows such that it would not mest this condition. In making this assesement, the
Series Trust congiders:

- conlingent events that would change the amount or timing of cash flows;
- leverage featuras:
- prepayment and extension features,

- terms that limit the Series Trust's claim fo cash flows from specified assels (e.g. non-recourse features);
and

- features that maodify consideration of the time value of meney (6.9, periodical raset of interest rates).
The Series Trust has determined that it has two business models:

- Held-to-collect business model: this includes cash and cash equivalents, prepaid fees and recefvables
for units issued and securities sold. These financial assets are held lo collect contractual cash flow.

- Other business model: this includes financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (Investment in the
Selected Fund and derivative financial instruments). These financial assets are managed and their
performance is evaluated, on a fair value basis, with frequent sales taking place.

in making an assessment of the objective of the business model in which a financial asset is held, the Series Trust
eonsiders all of the relevant information about how the business is managed, including:

- the documentad investment strategy and the execution of this strategy in practice. This includes whether
the investment strategy focuses on earning contractual interest income, maintaining a particular interest
rate profile, matching the duration of the financial assets to the duration of any related liabilities or
expected cash outflows or realising cash flows through the sale of the assets!

- how the performance of the partfolic is evaluated and reported to the Series Trusl's management,

- the risks that affect the performance of the business model (and the financial assets held within that
business model) and how those risks are managed.

- how the investrment manager is compensated: e.g. whethe- compensation is based on the fair value of the
assels managed of the contractual cash flows collacied; and

- the frequency, volume and timing of sales of financial assets in prier periods, the reasons for such sales
and expeciations about fulure sales aclivity.

Transfers of financial assals to third parties in transactions that do not qualify for derecognition are nol coneiderad
sales for this purpose, consistent with the Series Trust's continuing recognition of the assels.

impairment of financial assets

The 'expected cradit loss' (ECL) model applies e financial assets measured at amoriized cost and debl investments
at FVQC!, but not ta investments in eguity instruments,
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PIMCO Short Term Strategy
MNotes to Financial Statements (continued)
For the Period from July 29, 2019 (Commencement of Operations) through July 31, 2020

{Expressed in U.S. Dollars)

Based on fhe Series Trust's assessment, the ECL model does nol have a material impact on the Series Trust's
financial aszels bacause:
- The majority of the financial assets are measured at FVTPL and the impairment requirements do not apply
15 such instrumeants.

- The financial assets at amortized cost are short-term (i.e. no longer than 12 months), of high credil quality
and/or highly collateralized. Accordingly, the ECLs on such assets are expected to be small.

New standards, amendments and interpretations issued but not effective for the period from July 29, 2019
{Commencement of Operations) through July 31, 2020:

& number of new slandards and amendments to standards are effective for annual periods beginning after July 23,
2019 (Commencement of Operations) and earier application ie permitted; however, the Series Trust has not early
applied these new or amended standards in preparing these finansial statements as they do nol have a material
effact on tha Series Trust's financial statements.

2.1 Cash and Cash Equivalents
The Series Trust considers all cash, foreign cesh and short-term dencsits wilh criginal maturity of three months or
less to be cash and cash equivalents.

At July 31, 2020 the Series Trust held tha following balances as cash and cash equivalents:

2020
Teme daposil S 189,423
Cash and cash equivalents in the Statement of Financial Pesition 5 185,423

2.2 Financial Assets and Liabilities

[A) Classification
The Series Trust classifies financial assels and liabilities into the following categories:

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss:
+ Mandatorily at FYTPL: Investmeant in the Selected Fund and derivative financial instruments.

Financial assets al fair value through profit or loss consist of the following:

July 31, 2020 July 31, 2020
- Fair Valus - Cost
Inwestment in the Sebected Fund [ 34,148,083 5 33628708
Investment in forward contracts 205,613 -
Tolal financial assets at fair value through profit of loss ] 34,351,708 s 33 6528708

Financial assets at amoriized cost:
« Cash and cash eguivalents, prepaid fess and recaivables for unils issued and securities sold.

Financial Rabilites at fair value through profit or loss:
+« Mandatorly at FVTPL: derivative financial instruments.

Financial iablifies at fair value through profit or loss consist of the following:

July 31, 2020 July 34, 2020
- [Fair Value - Cost
Invastmant in forward contracts $ g84 862 3 -
Totel fingncial kabilities at fair value through profit or loss 5 084862 3 -
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PIMCO Short Term Strategy
MNotes to Financial Statements (continued)
For the Period from July 29, 2019 (Commencement of Operations) through July 31, 2020

(Expressed in U.5. Dollars)

Financial liabilities at amortized cost:
s Dther lisbilities: purchase of nvestment in the Selected Fund, investment advisory fees, dislribution fees,
prafessional fees, custody fees, fee agent fees, transier agent fees and agent member company fees.

(B) Recognition/Derecognition

The Seres Trust recognizes financial assets and labdities on the date it becomes a parly to the confractual
provisions of the instrument. Regular purchases and sales of investments are recognized on the lrade date - the date
on which the Series Trust commils to purchase or sell the investment. Financial assets are derecognized when the
rights to receive cash flows from the investments have expired or the Seres Trust has transferred substantially all
risks and rewards of ownership. Financial babiliies are derecegnized when its contractual obligations are discharged,
canceled or expired.

(C) Measurement

Financial agszets and Eabililies st foir value through profit or loss are nitially recognized at fair value with transaction
costs recognized in the Stalement of Comprehensive Income. Subsequent to infial recognition, all financial assets
and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are measured a1 fair value. Gains and losses arising from changes in
the fair value of the financial assets and liabilties at fair value through profit or less' category are presented in the
Statement of Comprehensive Incoma in the period in which they arise. Reslized gains or losses on sale of
investments are calculated using first-in-first-out method.

Finandal assets and Eabilities other than those at fair value through profit or loss are camied at amertized cost using
the effective interest rate method, less impairment losses, if any. This is considered to approximate fair value due 1o
tha short-lerm or immediate nalure of these instruments,

(D} Fair Value Estimation

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markels (such as publicly traded dervatives and lrading
securities) is based on quoted market prices at the close of trading on the reporting date. Fair valus is the price that
walld be received o sell an assel or paid to ransfer a Bability in an orderdy transaction between market participants
at the measurement date, The fair value of a lability reflects its non-performance risk. Investmants or cther assels for
which market quotations are nol readily available are valued al their fair value as determined in geod faith in
accordance with procedures adopted by the Trustee with advice from the Manager. The resulting change in
unrealized gains or losses are reflected in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

(E} Forward Contracts

Forward contracts are commilments either 1o purchase or sell a designated financial instrument, currency, commadity
or an index at a specified future date for = specified price and may be settied in cash or another financial asset.
Forward confracts are valued using observable inputs, such as currency exchange rates or commaodity prices, applisd
lo notional ameunis stated in the applicable contracts. Gains and los=es are reporled in net realized gain or loss on
financial azsets through profit or loss in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

(F) Investment in the Selected Fund

In principle, the Investment Manager will invest 8 majority of the Net Asset Value in the Selected Fund. The Selected
Fund is denominated in USD. The Investment Manager will not invest in non-USD denominated assets. The Series
Trust's investment in the Selected Fund is subject to the terms and condilions of the Selected Fund's offering
documentation. The Series Trust records its investments In the Selected Fund at fair velue based primarily on the
Selected Fund's net asgels value (NAVT), as determined by the administrator of the Selected Fund. The Series Trust
reviews lhe details of the reporled information obtained from the Selected Fund's adminisirator and considers: (f) the
liquidity of the Selected Fund, or ils underlying investments, (i) the value date of the NAV provided, (i) any
restrictions on redemptions. and (iv) the basis of accounting, Since the Series Trust invesls substantizlly all of its
assets in the Selected Fund, net capilal appreciation or depreciation, respectively, of the Series Trust is generally
based on net capital appreciation or depraciation, respectively, of the Selected Fund. The value of the Series Trusts
invesmment in the Selected Fund is based on available information and does not necessarily represent the amount
that might ulimately be realized, as such amount depends on future circumstances and cannol reasonably be
denominated unlit the Selected Fund's wnderlying investment are actually liquidated. Further, the Series Trusl's
investment in the Selected Fund in indirectly subjectsd to restrictions, if any, of the liquidity of the Selected Fund's
investments.

The Saries Trust's investment in the Selected Fund is considerad to be liquid and can be redesmed on any business

day. The Seres Trust may submit to the Trustee of the Selected Fund or its duly designaled agent a Repurchase
Nofice requesting to have all or a portion its units repurchased on the relevant repurchase date. The Trustee of the
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PIMCO Short Term Strategy
Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
For the Period from July 29, 2019 (Commencement of Operations) through July 31, 2020

(Expressed in U.5. Dollars)

Selacted Fund should receive the repurchase notice by electronic transmission en or prior to 7:00 am. Eastern Time
in the United States of America on the applicable repurchase date. If such nolice is not respect of the enfire holding
units of the Series Trust. then the Trustee of lhe Selecled Fund in its sele discretion may apply 2 minimum
repurchase reguirement of more than one unit or TRY 10 (or its equivalent in any currency).

2.3 Offsetting Financial Instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the Statement of Financial Position only
when fhere is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognized amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net
basizg, or reslize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. As at July 31, 2020 all financial assets and liabilities
are shown al their gross amounts as none met the criteria for financial instrument offsetting and therefore have net
been offest n the Statement of Financial Fosition.

2.4 Racalvables for securities sold and payables for purchase of investment in the Selected Fund

Receivables for securities sold and payables for securities purchased represent trading transactions Ihat have been
contracted for but not yei setlled on the Stalement of Financial Position date, respectively. Theze amounts are
recognized initially and subsaquently measured at fair value, less provision for impairment for amounts of receivables
for securities seld. A provision for impairment is established when there is objective evidence that the Series Trust wil
not be able to collect all amounts of recaivablas for securities sold. Significant financial difficulties of the broker,
probability that the broker will enter bankruptey or finandial reorganization, and default in payments are considencd
indicators that the amcunt ef receivables for securities sold Is impaired.

2.5 Expenses
Expenses are recognized an an acerual basis in the Staternent of Comprehensive Income.

2.6 Foreign Currency Translation

{A) Functional and Presentation Currency
The performance of the Series Trust is measured and reported to the investors in U.53, Dellars. The Trustee consicers
the U.S. Dollar as the currency that most faithfully represents the economic effects of the underying transaclions,
events end conditions of the Series Trust. The finandal statements are presented in U.S. Dollars, which is the Series
Trust's functional and presentation currency.

(B} Transactions and Balances

Financial assets and fiabilities denominated in foreign currencies are Iranslated in U.S. Dellar amounts at the date of
valuation. Purchases and sales of financial assets and liabillies, issue and repurchase of units and income and
expense items denominated in foreign currencies are transiated into U.5. Doller amounts on the respective dates of
such tfransactions.

Reported net realized or unrealized forsign exchange gains or losses resulting from changes in foreign exchange
rates on financial assets and liabilties at fair value through profil of loss are included in net realized gain or loss on
financial assets and lizbiliies at fair value through profit or less, and net change in unrealized appreciation or
depreciation on financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss in the Statement of Comprehensive
Incame.

Realized and unrealized appraciation or depreciation from foreign currency transactions and translalion are disclosed
separately in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

2.7 Distributions

The eurrent policy of the Seres Trust, in respect of the TRY Class Units, is that it is not expected to pay distributions

provided that, the Manager may, in its discretion, declare and pay distribulions in respect of such class of units from
time to ime. The SF Manager does net cumently expect to deciare distributions with respect fo the Selected Fund.

If the Manager does declare any distributions in respect of a class of units, it is anficipated that any such distributions
are declared on an annual basis on esch distibulion declaration date and may be made from investment principal
{a realization of units in the Selected Fund) atiributable to such class of units,

There were no distributions declared and paid during the pericd ended July 31, 2020
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{Expressed in U.5. Dollars)

2.8 Repurchases of Units

The Seres Trusl has units which are repurchasad at the holder's option. The Series Trust classifies iis puttable
instruments as lizbiliies in accordance with IAS 32 (Amendment) Financial nstruments: FPresentalion.
The amendment requires pullable financial instruments that meet the definition of a financial liability o be classified
as equity whare certain strict eriteria are met. These crileria include:

s The pultable inslruments must entitle the holdar to a pro-rata share of net assats;
= The puttzble instruments must be the most subordinated class and dass features must be identical;

= There must be no confractual obligations to deliver cash or another financial esset other than the obligation
on the issuer to repurchase; and

+« The total expected cash flows from the puttable inslrument over ils fife must be based substantially on the
profit or loss of the issuer.

As these conditions were met, the Series Trust's units have been classified as equity at July 31, 2020,

Units can be put back to the Series Trust at any tme for cash equal to a proportionate share of the Series Trust's total
equity.

Units are camied al the repurchased amount that is payable at the Statement of Financial Position date if the holder
exarcises the right to put the units back into the Series Trust.

Units are issued and repurchased at prices based on the Serles Trust's total equity per unit at the time of issue o
repurchase. The Series Trust's equily per unit is calculated by dividing the total egquity by the total number of
gutstanding units.

The Selected Fund finances its operations by issuing redeemable shares which are puttable at the holder's option
and entiles the holder to a proportional stake in the respective Seres Trust's net assets. The Series Trust holds
shares in the Selected Fund. The Seres Trust's maximum exposure to lass from its interesls in the Selected Fund is
equal fo lhe total fair value of its invesiments in the Sclected Fund. Once the Series Trust has disposed of its shares
in the Selectad Fund the Series Trusl ceases to be exposed to any risk from the Selected Fund.

2.8 Indemnities

The Trusiee and the Manager, on behalf of the Series Trust, enter into certain confracts that contain a variety of
indemntications. The Saries Trust's maximum exposure under these arrangements is unknown. However, the Senes
Trust has not had prior claims of losses pursuant {o these conlracts and expects the risk of loss to be remote.

2.10 Receivables for Units Issued and Payables for Units Repurchased

Receivable for unils issued is carried at the issuance amount that Is receivable at the Statement of Financial Positicn
date. Payable for repurchase of units is camied at the repurchase amount thal is payable al the Statemenl of
Financial Posifion date.

2.11 Net incomel{loss) from financial instruments at FVTPL

Met income from financial instruments at FVTFL includes realized and unrealized gainlcsses on financial assets and
liabilities at fair value through profit and loss. Net realized gain or loss from financial instruments at FVTPL is
calculated using the first in, first out method. Met realized (lossigain on financial assets and Fabilities at FVTPL
represents the difference betweean the cost of the fnancial instrumenls and its settlement price of the sale trade.

Mel change in unrealized (depreciationyappreciation on financial assets and liabilities al FVTPL represents the
difference betwean the camying amount of a financial instrument at the beginning of the peried, or the transaction
price i it was purchased in the current reporiing pericd and ils carrying amount at the end of the reporting period.
Refer to Mote & for further details.
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212 Taxation

The Trust has received an undertaking from the Cayman lslands Govemment exempting it from all lecal income,
profits and capital gains taxes until December 2, 2063, No such taxes are levied in the Cayman slands at the presant
time.

The Saeres Trust could incur withholding taxes impeosed by cerain countries on investment income and capilal gains.
Such income or gain would be recorded gross of withholding taxes in the Statement of Comprehensive Income,
Withholding taxes would be shown as a separate itern in the Stalement of Comprehensive Income. No withhalding
tax expense was paid during the period ended July 31, 2020,

The Selected Fund may choose to invest in securities domiciled in countries other than Cayman Islands. Many of
these foreign countriss have tax laws which Indicate that capital gains taxes may be applicable lo non-residents
including the Selected Fund. These capital gains taxes are required o be datermined on a self-assessment basis
and, therefore, such laxes may not be deducted by the Selecled Fund's breker on a ‘withhalding’ basis.

In accordance with 145 12 — Income Taxes, the Seres Trust is required lo recognize a tax liability when it is probable
that the tax laws of foreign countries require a tax liability to be assessed on the Seres Trust's capilal gains scurced
from such foreign country, assuming the relevant taxing authorities have full knowledge of all the facts and
circurnstances. The tax Fability is then measured at the amount expected to be paid to the relevant laxation
autharities using the tax laws and rates that have been enacted or substantively enacled by the end of the reparting
pericd. There is sometimes uncertainty about the way enacted tax law is applied to offshore invastment Series
Trusts. This creates uncertainly about whether or net 2 tax liabllity will ulfimately be paid by the Series Trust.
Therefore, ‘when measuring any uncerlain tax labiliies management considers all of the relevant facts and
circumstances available at the time which could influence the likelihood of payment, including any formal or infermal
practices of the relevant tax authorities.

As at July 31, 2020, the Manager has determined that the Series rrust did not have a Hability 1o record for any
unrecognized tax beneft n the accompanying financial statemenis. While this represents the Managers best
estimate there remains a risk that the foreign tax authorities will attempt to collect taxes on capital gains earmed by
the Series Trust. This could happen without giving prior wamning. possibly on a retrospeclive basis, and could result in
a loss to the Series Trusl

2.13 investment in unconsolidated structured entities
The Series Trust has concluded that all investments in the unlisted Selected Fund, in which it holds an Interest but
does not consolidate, meets the definiton of structured entities due to the following.
s the voling rights in these entities are not the dominant rights in deciding who controls them as they relate to
administrative tasks only,
Ihe enlities' activities are restricted by their respective invesimant strategy or offering documents: and
these entities have a narrow and well-defined objective to provide investment opporunities to investors.

The nature of and risks associated with the Series Trust's interest in the other funds are disclosed in Note 5.

3. REPURCHASES OF UNITS

The Net Asset Value of each unit of the Series Trust is calculated by dividing the Net Asset Value of the Series Trust
by the total number of units of the Seres Trust then outstanding. The Administrator computes the Net Asset Value of
the Series Trust at the close of business on each dealing day.

The price af units, for all purposes, is calculated and paid in Turkish Lira.

The minimum initial subscription mus! ba no less than 1 unit, All unitholders must complete a subscription application,
The initizl purchase price of units is TRY10 per unit. All payments for the unils must be made in Turkish Lira.
The Trustee may reject any subscription for any reason and without providing reasons.

After the initizl izeus of units, =n eligible mvestor may subscribe for units on any subsequent subscription date at the

relevant subscription price. All payments for the unitz shall be made in Turkish Lira. The Trustee may reject any
subscription for any reason and without providing reasons.
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The Trustee or its duly designated zgent musl recsive the subscription price for the units on or prior to 6:00 p.m.
tJapan fime) by no later than the second business day after the relevant subscription date, Subscription applications
are irrevocable.

The total net assets, units outstanding and net assels value per unit as of July 31, 2020 ware as follows:

Nat Asset Value per
Classas of units Total net assets Units oulstanding unit
Clasz TRY Unils s 33,914,283 21455319 & 1.5807

As of July 31, 2020, all izsued units were held by twe unitholders, who holds 100% of interest in the net assets.

Unitholders may transfer their holdings in units enly with the prior written consent of the Trustee which consent shall
not be unreasonably withheld or delayed. No transfer of units will be effective and binding on the Trusiee or
unithclder until entered into the Series Trust's register of unitholders.

Each unitholder may submil to the Truslee or its duly designated agent a repurchase notics requesting to have all or
a porfion of its units repurchased al the Repurchase Price on the relevant repurchase date, Repurchase orders may
be submitted in units. If such notice is nat in respact of the entire holding units of such unitholder recorded in the
register of unitholders then the Trustee in its sole discretion may apply a minimum repurchase requirement of 1 unit.
Repurchasa nobces are irevocable,

At the time of each repurchase of units prior to the Final Repurchase Day, no repurchase fee is applied to each unit
being repurchased.

Amourts payable 1o the unitholders in connection with the repurchase of units of any class are paid in cash but may
be made in kind (or partially in kind) by the distribution of securities held by the Trustee to the extent that the Trustee,
in consultation with the Manager, determines it to be in the best interests of the unitholders. If such a delermination is
made by the Trustee, distributions to all repurchasing unitholders on the same day are made on the same basis.

Payment may also be made in such other cummency that may be freely purchased with such applicable curency as
& unitholders may request, provided that any forsign exchange cost shall be deducted from the amount payable to
such unitholders. No such repurchase proceeds will bear interest prior to actual distribution.

During the period ended July 31, 2020, tha proceeds from unils issued, repurchased and oulstanding were as
follows:

At
July 28, 2018
{Commencement of Proceeds from units  Proceads from units At
Classes of units Opurations) ) issued repurchased July 31, 2020
Class TRY Unils S - 3 41654188 § (4788.523) S 36,854,860

Dwring the period ended July 31, 2020, the number of units issued, repurchased and outstanding were as follows:

At
July 28, 2019
{Commencement of At
Classes of units DOperations) Units isgued Units repurchased July 31, 2020

Class TRY Units 24,353,267 (2,857 S48) 21 458318

The issue and repurchase of units and payments in respect of such transactions will be suspended in any
circumstances whera the calculation of the Net Assal Value per unit is suspended. The Trustee will inform unithelders
of such a suspension as soon as practicable after it is imposed or lfed. Subscription applications and repurchase
notices cannot be withdrawn during such suspensicn and will be processed for the next subscriplion date or
repurchase date, as the case may be.
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGMENTS

Management makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future that affect the reported amounts of assais and
limbilities. Estimates are continually evaluated and based on historical experience and other factors, including
expaciations of future events that are belisved lo be reasonable under the circumslances. The resulting accounting
estimates will, by definition, sekiom equal the relaled actual results. The Series Trust may, from time to time, hold
financial instruments that are not quoted in active markets, such as over-the-counter derivatives. Fair values of such
instruments are determined by using valuation techniques. Where valuation techniques {for example, models) are
used to determine fair values, they are validated and periodically reviewed by the Manager.

. FINANCIAL RISKS MAMAGEMENT

5.1 Principal Risk Factors of the Series Trust

The Series Trust's investment portfolio mainly comprises of the Selected Fund, The Series Trust's activities expose il
to @ variety of financial nsks: market risk (including currency risk, interest rate risk and price risk), credit sk and
liquidity risk. The management of these risks is caried out by the Manager under policies approved by the Trustes.

The Series Trust may be materially affected by the actions of another antity investing in the Selected Fund. Fer
example, if another unitholder of the Selscted Fund repurchases some er all of its interests in the Selected Fund, the
Selected Fund and, in turn, the Series Trust, may experience higher pro rata operating expenses, thereby producing
lower returns. Similarly, the Selected Fund may become less diverse due to repurchases from its other unithalders,
resulting in increased portfolio risk. The Selected Fund may resirict its investment activities or be precluded from
investing in cartain instruments due to regulatory restrictions on cerlain of its direct or indirect investors or otherwise,
which may have an adverse effect on the parfermance of the Selected Fund, and, in furn, the Series Trust.

{A) Market Risk

(i} Gurrency Risk

Investment in the Selacted Fund and ferward contracts in which the Series Trust invests may be denominated or
quoted in currencies ather than the functional currency of the Series Trust. For this reason, changes in foreign
currency exchange rates can atfect the value of the Series Trust's pertfolio.

Generally, when the Series Trust's functional currency rises in value against ancther currency, a security
denaominatad in that currency loses value because the currency is worth less giving effect to the conversion into the
Series Trusts functional currency. Conversely, when the Series Trust's funclional cumency decreases in value
against another currency. a securily denominated in that currency gains value.

This risk, generally known as "currency risk,” means that a strang functional currency of the Series Trust may reduce
retums 1o investors while a weak funclicnal currency of the Series Trust may increase theose retums. Currency rales
may fluctuate significantly over short periods of lime for @ number of reasons, including changes in inferest rates,
intervention (or the failure to intervens) by the governments, cenfral banks or supranational entities such as the
International Monetary Fund, or by the imposition of currency contrels or other polifical developments. As a result, the
Saries Trust's investments in foreign-currency denominated securities may reduca its returns. Cerlain positions taken
by the Series Trust are designed to profit from forecasling cumrency price movements. Predicting future prices is
inherently uncertain and the losses incurred, if the markel moves against a position, will not be hedged. The
speculative aspect of atlempting to predict absolute price movements is generally perceived to exceed that involved
in atternpting to predict relative price fluctuations.

Through the use of various types of foreign currency transactions, the Series Trust may be exposed o tha
performance of a particular currency or currencies to conlribute to the performance of the Series Trust. There can be
no assurance that the Manager will employ a successful currency program and the Series Trust could incur losses
attributable to its cumency activities when the value of the functional currency weakens against the other currendies of
{he Seres Trust. In addition, the Series Trust will incur transaction costs in connection with the currency strategy
designated by the Manager.
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The table below summarizes the Saries Trust's exposure to currency risks at July 31, 2020

Finungial Assels
at Fair Valug % of Net

Al Cash and Cash  threugh Profitor Foreand Othor Asgets and Asset

July 31, 2020 Equivalents Loss” Contracts Lisbilities (Net] Mt Value
Turkigh Lica TRY 5 L ] -5 [T78.248) 5 107024 § B2 225) (20)%
- = (779,249) 107,024 [672,228) {ZO01%
United Siates Collar USD 189423 34 145 083 . 250,902 34 B84 508 10E.0%
5 109,423 & 34,145,093 & (7T79.249) 5 358.016 5 33.815.283 100.0%

*Exciuding desvative inancal instrumants.

The fallowing table summarizes the sensitivity of the Series Trust's assets and liabilities to changes in foreign
exchange movements at July 31, 2020. The analysis is based on the assumptions that the relevant foreign exchange
rate increased/{decreased) against the U.S. Dollar by the percentages disclosed in the table, wilh all other variables
held constant. This represents management's best astimate of a reasonably possible shift in the foreign exchange
rales, having regard to historica] velatility of thosa rates.

Reasonably possible

shift in currency rate Impact to Series Trust
Currency 2020 Met Assets
TRY - 26.01% -~ & 174,845

Currency Forwards ara entered into for the account of the TRY Class Units with the aim of converting the U.S. Dollar
exposure Into a Turkish Lira exposure by providing the unitholders of the TRY Class with & long Turkish Lira
exposure to foreign exchange rate fluctuations in the currency rale between Turkish Lira (in which the TRY Class
Units are denominated) and U.S. Dollar (in which the Class C (USD) Class Units of the Selected Fund are
denominated).

{ii) Interest Rate Risk

Interest rale rick iz the risk that prices of fixed income secuwrities generally increase when interest rates decline and
decrease when interest rates increase. Prices of langer larm securities generally change more in response fo inferast
tale changes than prices of shorler term securities. Tha Series Trust may lose money if short-term or long-term
interest rates rise sharply or otherwise chenge in a manner net anticipated by Series Trust management. When
interest rates fluchiate, the duration of the security may be used as an indication of the degree of change in the dabt
price of the debt security. The bigger the securily’s duraticn value, the larger the change in the price of the debl
security for a given movement in interest rates may be. Therefore, the Net Asset Value may fluciuata.

Interest bearing assets held by the Series Trust are comprised of cash and cash equivalents whose maturity is less
than three months and tha imvestmeant in the Selected Fund.

The yield on the Selecled Fund's (and indirectly, the Series Trust's) investments may be sensitive to changes in
prevailing interest rates, which may result in a mismatch between ihe Selected Fund's asset yield and borrgwing
rates and consequently reduce or eliminate income derived from its investments.

If imterest rates increase, prices of fixed income securities generally decline, reducing the value of the Selected
Fund's (and indirectly, the Series Trust's) investments. A major change in interest rales or a significant decline in the
market value of the Mastar Fund's (and indireclly, the Trust's) investmants, or other market event, could cause the
value of the investments of the Master Fund's investors (and indirectly the unitholders' investments in the Serles
Trust), or ils yield, 1o decline,

If interest rates change, the values of longer-duration debt securities are usually subject to greater change than the
values of shorter-duration dabt securilies.

The Saries Trusl may invest in ficed income securities through its indirect exposure to the investments of the
Selected Fund. Any changes to prevailing interest rates or changes in expectations of future rates may result in an
increase or decrease in the value of the securities held,
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At July 31, 2020, should interest rates have lowerad or risen by 50 basis points with all other variables remaining
canslant, the increase or decrease in total comprehensive income of the Series Trust (being increase in net assels
attributable to the holders of units from operations for the peried) would amaunt fo approximately $947, assuming that
the cash position will ba held for one year.

{iii} Market Price Risk

The market price of investments owned by the Series Trust and securties held by the Selected Fund may go up or
down, sometimes rapidly ar unpredictably. Securities may decling In value due lo factors affecting securities markets
generally or parficular industries represented in the securities markets, The value of a security may decline du= 1o
general market conditions which are not specifically related to a particular company, such as real or perceived
adverse economic conditions, supply and damand for particular securilies or instruments, changes in the general
outlook for corporate eamings, changes in interest or currency rates or adverse investor sentiment. They may also

decline due o factors which affect a particular industry or industries, such as labor shortages or increased production
cosls and competitive condilions within an industry. During a general downtum in the securities markets, mulliple
assat classes may deding in value simultaneously, Equily securifies generally have greater price volatility than fixed
income securities.

An increasa in market prices of the investment in the Selected Fund of 1% at July 31, 2020, would have increased
the total equity by $341,461. A decrease of 1% would, all else being equal, have an equal but oppesite effect

The following table summarizes the concentration in market price risk of the Selected Fund's at July 31, 2020 as a
percenlage of net assets of the Selected Fund.

Country Name Fair Value % of Net Assets

Investments in securities
Australia s 3844830 0.8%
Bermuda 1,722,347 0.4%
Canada 4683202 1.1%
Cayman lzlands 31,081,480 T.2%
Chile 795,563 0.2%
Denmark 2,128,324 0.5%
Finland 1,304,028 0.3%
France 508,679 01%
Germany 803,034 D.2%
Hong Kong 1,702,414 0.4%
India 3,726,978 0.9%
Ireland 11,567 044 2.7%
Israel 458,158 01%
Japan 37248773 BE%
Luxembourg 500,223 0.1%
Metherands 8,201,924 1.8%
Catar 1,014,289 0.2%
Saudi Arabia 508,670 0.1%
Singapcre 5113.836 1.2%
South Korea 2312473 0.5%
Switzerdand 3,781,741 0.9%
United Arab Emirates 3,009,150 0.7%
United Kingdom 53,205,880 14.7%
United States 218,071,570 50.5%
Virgin lslands 1.010.424 0.2%

Total investment in securties s 408,518,145 84.5%

1%
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{B) Credit Risk

Changes in an issuer's credil rating or the market's perception of an issuer's creditworthiness may affect the value of
the Series Trust's investment in that issuer. The degree of credit risk depends on both the financial condition of the
iszuer and the terms of the obligation.

Due 1o its investment in the Selected Fund, the Series Trust is cxposed to the credit nisk associaled with debt
instruments that may be held by the Selected Fund. All transactions in listed securities held by the Selacted Fund are
settled/paid for upon delivery using approved brokers. The risk of default is considersd minimal, as delivery of
securities sold is only made once the broker has received payment. Payment is made on a purchase once the
securities have been received by the broker, The frade will fail if either party fails lo meet their obligation.

The Investment Manager monitors the Series Trust's credit position on an on-going basis.

The maximum exposure to credit fsk of all financial assets of the Saries Trust as of July 31, 2020 is the camying
amounts as shown on the Statement of Financial Position. No collateral or other credit enhancements are held by the
Series Trust. Nonae of these assets are impaired or past due.

The clearing and depository operations for the Selected Fund's security transactions are mainly concentrated with the
Custadian. At July 31, 2020, substantizlly all cash and cash equivalents and investments are placed in custody with
the Custadian, with a Fitch credil raling of A+

The following table summarizes the credit quality of the Selecled Fund's debt portfolic at July 31, 2020 as
a percentage of nel assets of the Selected Fund.

Rating* % of Net Assets
Aaa 23.4%
Aal 0.4%
Aa? 0.4%
Aal 2.5%
Al T7.0%
A2 6.7%
A3 10.2%
Baai 4.8%
Baa2 11.0%
Bagsd 12.0%
Bail 1.3%
Baz 2.0%
Ba3 0.3%
B1 0.6%
B3 0.2%
Caal 0.2%
MR 11.5%
94.8%

=Securlty ralings, if any, are obtained from Moady's/ SEP s Fitch's Investor Service.

(C) Ligquidity Risk

Liquidity risk axists when particular invesiments are difficult to purchase or sell. The Series Trusl's investments in
iliquid securities may reducs the returns of the Series Trust because it may be unable to sell the illiquid securities al
an advantageous tme or price. To the extent that the Series Trust's principal investment strategies invohle
derivatives or securities with substantial market and/or credit risk, the Series Trust will tend lo have the greatesl
exposure to liquidity risk.
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The table balow analyzes the Series Trust's financial labilities into relevant maturity grouping based on the remaining
period at the Statement of Financial Pesition date to the confractual maturity date. The amounts in the table are the
contractual undiscounted cash flows.

At July 31, 2020 Less than 1 month 1 - 3 months Total

Payables for:
Unite repurchased 186,376 = 186,376
Investment advisory fees 38,709 = 38,709
Distribution fees ™ - 34,781
Professicnal fees 16,250 - 18,250
Custody fees 7,041 - 7,041
Fee agent fees 3,180 - 3,180
Tranefar agen! fees 2,780 - 2,750
Purchase of investment in Selected Fund 244 - Bas
Agant member comparny fees 285 - 286

Contractual cash out flows (excluding nat

assete attributable to the holder of units) & 283,247 ] - $ Z93.247

The Manager monitors the Series Trust's liquidity pasition on an on-going basis.,
Liquidity rizk iz managed by invesling no more than 15% of the Nat Asset Value in illiquid assets.

The following table summarizes the Series Trust's derivative financial instruments at July 31, 2020, with gross
setflement for which the contractual maturiies are considered to be essential to an understanding of the liming of
cash fows based on the Series Trust's invesimenl strategy. The amounts disclosed in the table represent the
undiscounted cash flows.

At July 31, 2020 Less than 1 month 1-3 months Graatar than 3 months Total
Gross scithed derivatives

Forward contracts

=Oiutfiow £ 70.701.825 § 34037272 5 - § 104,739,157
Anflgw 70,341,580 33.617.9885 - 103,859,548

Due 1o its nvestment in the Selected Fund, tha Series Trust is expased to the liguidity dsk associated with unitholders
repurchases in accordance with the terms in the Selected Fund's Prospectus. The Series Trust is managed o include
liquid investrents sufficient to meet normal liquidity needs although substantial repurchases of Units in the Seres
Trust could raquire the Selected Fund to liquidate its investments more rapidly than otherwise desirable in order o
raise cash for the repurchases. These factors could adversely affect the value of the units repurchased and the
valuation of the units that remain outstanding and the liquidity of the Series Trust's remaining assets if more liquid
assels have been sold lo meet the repurchases.

There were no repurchase fees applied in respect lo the Selected Fund for the pariod ended July 21, 2020.

(D) Risk Management
The Series Trust's Investment Manager's team is supported by certain risk management systems and professionals,
which provide regular reporting on all portfolio positions and quantitative risk measures.

The capital of the Series Trust is represented by the net assels aftributable o the holder of units.
The amount of net assets atiributable to the holder of units can change significantly on a daily basis as the Series
Trust is subject to daily subscriptions and repurchases at the discretion of the unithclder. The Series Trust's objective
when managing capital is to safeguard the Series Trust's ability to continue as a going concam in order to provide
relums for the unithelder and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain a strong capital base to suppod the
development of the investment activities of the Series Trust. In order te¢ maintain or adjust the capital structure, the
Serles Trust's policy is to perform the following:

+  Monitor the leval of daily subscriptions and repurchasas relative to the liquid assets and adjust the
amount of distributions the Seres Trust pays to the holder of units.
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{Expressad in U 5. Dolfars)

=  Repurchase and issua new units in accordance with the constitutional documents of the Serfes Trust.
The Manager monitors capital on the basis of the value of nel assets attributable to the holder of units.

5.2 Additional Series Trust's Risks

[A) Custody Risk

Neither the Trustee nor the Manager controls the custodianship of the Serles Trust's entire holding of indirect
investments. The Custodian or other banks or brokerage firms selected to acl as custodians may become insolvent,
causing the Series Trust to lose all er a portion of the funds or securities held by those custodians.

{B) Risk of Indemnification

The Trustes, the Manager, the Administrator, the Custodian, and other parties, and each of their respective agents,
principals, officers, employees, and affiliates are entiled te be indemnified out of the assels of the Seres Trust under
certain circumnstances which may result in a decrease in Net Asset Value per unit,

(C) Settlement Risk

Sattlement and clearance procedures in certain foreign markets differ significantly from those in the United States,
the European Unicn and Japan. Foreign settierment and clearance procedures and lrade regulations also may involve
certain risks (such as delays in payment for or delivery of securities) not typically assccialed with the setlement of
Uniied States investments. At times, settlements in cerain foreign countries have not kepl pace with the number of
securities transaclions, These problems may make it difficult for the Selected Fund and ultimately, the Manager to
carry out transactions for the account of the Series Trust If the Manager cannol settle or is delayed in settling
a purchase of securities, it may miss attraclive investment opportunities and certain of the Series Trusl's assels may
be uninvested with no retumn eamed thereon for some periad.

If tha Selested Fund and ultimately, the Manager cannot settle or s delayed in setiling a sale of securities, the Series
Trust may lose money if the value of the underying security then declines or, if it has contracted 1o sell the security o
anather party; the Series Trust could be liable for any losses incurred.

(D) Derivatives

The Manager may use derivative instruments to hadge the Series Trust's invesiments or Io seek lo enhance the
Series Trust's returns. Derivatives allow the risk exposure of the Series Trust to increase or decreasa mare quickly
and efficiently than cther types of inslruments, Derivatives are volatile and involve sigrificant risks, including:

« Credit Risk — tha risk that the counterparly (the party on Ihe other side of the transaction) cn & derivalive
transaction will be unable to honor iis finandial obligation to the Seres Trust.

» Leverage Risk — lhe risk associated with cerlain types of investments or trading sirategies that relatively small
market movemenis may result in large changes in the velue of an investment. Certain investments or rading
strategies that involve leverage can result in losses that greatly exceed the amount eriginally invested.

- Liguidity Risk — the risk that cerlain securities may be difficult ar impossible lo sell at the time that the sallar would
like or at the price that the seller believes the securily is currently worth.

The Manager may use derivatives for hedging purposes for the Series Trust, including anficipatory hedges. Hedging
is a strategy in which the Manager uses a derivative to offeel the risks associaled with other Series Trust's holdings.
While hedging can reduce losses, it can also reduce or eliminale gains or cause losses if the market moves in
a manner different from that anticipated by the Manager or if the cost of the darivative outwsighs the benefit of the
hedge. Hedging alse involves the risk that changes in the value of the derivative will not match those of the holdings
being hedged as expected by the Manager, in which case any losses on the holdings bsing hedged may not be
reduced and may be increased. There Is no assurance that the Series Trust's hedging strategy will reduce risk or
that hedaing trangactions are eilher available or cost effective. The Manager is not required to use hedging for the
Series Trust and may choose not lo do so. Because the Manager may use derivatives to seek to enhance the Saries
Trust's retumns, ite investments will expose the Series Trust o the risks cutfined above to a greater extent than if the
Manager used derivatives solely for hedging purposes. Use of derivatives to seek to snhance retumns is considered

speculative.
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As of July 31, 2020, had the Series Trust been subject to neHling arrangements and similar apreements,
the derivalive assels and liabiities would have been presented as fellows:

Met Amounts of
Financial Assets
Gross Amoeunts of Gross Amounts Offset Presented in the
Recognized In the Statarnent of the Statement of
Derivalive Assets  Counterparty Financial Assets Financial Position Financial Position
Farwasd eontracts cE 5 205613 & - % 205613
5 21!&613 5 - & ms&

Related amownts not offset in the Statemant of Flnancial Position

Net Amounts of
Financial Assats
Prosented in the
Statement of Cash Cellateral
Derivative Assets  Countarparty Financial Pesition Financial Instruments Received Hel Amount
Forwand contracts = 3 205613 % (205617 § - 5 -
§ 205613 5 (208613 § - 5 -
Met Amounts of
Financial
Liabilities
Gross Amounts of Gross Amounts Offsat Presantsd in the
Derivative Recognized in the Staternent of the Statement of
Liabilitias Counterparty Financial Liabilities Financial Pasitian Financial Position
Forward contracts c5 3 (o84 882) S - & (224.882)
% (584.862) 3 - & lﬂﬂ,!ﬂﬂ

Related amounts not offsel in the Statement of Financial Positien

Net Amounts of
Financial Liabilitles
Presented in the
Darivative Staterment of Cash CoBaterad
Liabilities Cournterparty Financial Position Financial Instruments Pledged Nat Amount
Forward contracts cs H (984862 5 205613 5 = 8§ [T79.245)
5 (934 862 5 205613 S - & mﬂ.iéﬂi

Counterparty Glossary:
C8 = Credit Suisse Intemational

(E) Counterparty and Broker Risk

The financial institutions 2nd counterparties, including banks and brokerage firms, such as the Custodian, with which
the Manager or its delegate tradas o invests for the account of the Seres Trust, may encounter financial difficulties
and default on their respective obligations owed in respect of the Series Trust, Any such defaull could resull in
maleral losses 1o the Seres Trust. In addition, the Manager may pledge collateral for the account of the Series Trust
to the counterparties in order to secure cerfain transactions. Mo collateral was pledged by the Manager during the
period ended July 31, 2020,

The Series Trust has not offest any financial assets or financial labilides in the Statement of Financial Posifion.

{F) No Interest in the Selected Fund
Tha raturn an the units depends, amongst olher things, on the performance of the Selecled Fund. An investment in
units does not give 8 unitholder a direct interest In the Selecled Fund.
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{Expressed in U.S. Dollars)

(G) Early Termination of the Series Trust
Although the Final Repurchasa Day of the Series Trust is scheduled for December 1, 2183, the Final Repurchase
Day will be brought forward should a Compulsery Repurchase Event occur,

{H) Other Risk

During the pericd, the COVID-19 outbreak was declared a pandemic by the World Heallh Organization. The siluation
iz dynamic with various cities and countries around the word responding in different ways to addrass the outbreak.
The rapid development and fluidity of this situation precludes any prediction as its ullimate impact, which may have a
ecntinued adverse impast on economic and market conditons and Irigger a period of global economic slowdown.

Manzgement and the Trusiees are monitoring developments refaling to COVID-19 and are coordinating ifs
operational response based on existing business continuity plans and on guidance from global health crganizations,
relevant govamments, and general pandemic response best practices.

5.3 Fair Value Estimation and Hiararchy Designation
The Series Trust applies IFRS 13 Fair vaive measurement, and uliizes the last traded market price for its fair
valuation inputs for both finencial assets and liabilities.

An active market is 8 market in which transactions for the asset or liability take place with sufficient frequency and
volume to provide pricing information on an ongaing basis.

The fair value of financial assets and liabilities that are not traded in an active market is defermined by using valuation
techniques. The Series Trust uses a variety of methods and makes assumptions thal are based on market conditions
existing a2t each period end date. Valuation techniques used for non-standardized financial instruments such as
opticns, currency swaps and other over-the-counter derivalives, include the use of comparable recent arm's length
transactions, referance to other instruments that are substantially the sama, discounted cash flow analysis. opticn
pricing models and other valuation techniques commonly used by market participants making the maximum use of
market inputs and relying as little as possible on enfity-specific inputs.

Fer instruments for which there is no aclive market, the Seres Trust may use intemally developed models, which are
usually based on valuation methoeds and technigues generally recognized as standard within the industry. Some of
the inputs to these models may not be market observable and are therefore estimated based on assumpticns. The
output of a model is always an estimate or approximation of a value that cannot be determined with certainty. and
valuation technigues employed may not fully reflect all factors relevant lo the posiions the Seres Trust holds.
Valuations are therefore adjusted, where appropriate, to allow for additional factors including model risk, Rguidity risk
and counterparty risk.

The Series Trust classfies fair value measurements using a fair value hierarchy that reflects the significance of the
inputs used in making the measureaments,

Tha fair value hierarchy has the following levels:
s Lewvel 1 inputs are quoted prices {unadjusted) in aclive markets for identical assets or liabilties that the entity
can access at tha measurement date;

= Level 2 inputs are inputs other than quoted prices included wilhin Level 1 that are observable for the asset
or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

« Level 3 inpuls are uncbsevable inputs for the asset or liability.

The level in the fair value hierarchy within which the fair value measurement is categorized in its entirety
is determined on the basiz of the lowast level input that is significant to the fair value measurement in its entirety. For
this purpose, the significance of an input is assessed against the fair value measurement in its entirety. I a fair value
measurement uses observable inpuls that require significant adjustment based on unobservable inpuls, thal
measurement is a Level 3 measurement. Assessing the significance of a particular inpul to the fair value
measurement in its entirefy requires judgment, considering factors specific to the asset or lizbility.

The determination of whal constitutes ‘observable’ requires significant judgment by the Administrator, under
advizsement of the Manager. The Administralor, under advisement of the Manager, considers observable data to be

a
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{Expressed in U.3. Dollars)

that marke! data that is readily availatle, regularly distibuted or updated, reliable and verifiable, not proprietary, and
provided by independant scurces that are aclively involved in the relevant market.

The following is & summary of the fair valuations according to the inputs used as of July 31, 2020 in veluing the
Series Trust's financial assets.

{Unadjusted) Guotad
Prces in Active Significant

Markets for ldentical Significant Other Unobservable
Financial Azsat at Fair Value Investments Observable Inputs Inputs Fair Value at
Through Profit or Loss [Lewel 1) {Level 2) (Level 3} July 31, 2020
Investment in the Selected Fund
PIMCO Short-Tarm Strategy
Class C {USD Clazs) 5 - 5 34 148,002 B - 5 34,145,083
Investment in forward conlracts - 205,613 - 206613
Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss 5 - & 3M4.3591.7068 3 = & 34,361,706
Financial Liabilites at Fair Value
Through Profit or Loss
Investment in forward contracs ] - 3% (684.862) § - % {984,852}
Financlal liabilities at fair valua
through profit or loss % - 5 (934.862) $ - 3 {984.862)

During the period ended July 31, 2020, there were no transfers between Levels 1, 2 and 3.

Financial inzfruments that trade in markels that are not considered to be active but are valuad based on quoied
market prices, dealer quotations or alternative pricing sources supporied by observable inputs are classified within
Level 2. These include overthe-countar derivatives and debt securities. As Level 2 investmenls include positions that
are not traded in active markets andfor are subject to transfer restriclions, valuations may be adjusted lto reflect
iliquidity andfor nen-transferability, whizh are generally based on available markal informaticn.

Financlal assets and liabilities not carried at fair value through profit or loss

At July 31, 2020, cash and cash equivalents and all other assets and habilities (including prepaid fees,
recaivables for units issued and securities sold and payables for purchase of investment in the Selected
Fund, advisory fees, distribution fees, professional fees, custody fees, fee agent fees. ransfar agenl fees
and agent member compary fees) are deemed shori-term financial assets and liabilities whose carrying
amounts approximate fair value because of their short-term nature. Refer to Note 2 for 2 description of the
valuation technigques.

5.4 Investments in unconsolidated structured entities

Ag of July 31, 2020, the Selected Fund's net asset value was $431,728,545. As of July 31, 2020 the Selected Fund
held total investments of $431,148,133 comprising of fixed income securities (agency bonds, asset backed-securities,
corporate bonds and notes, morigage-backed securities, municipal bonds and notes, sovereign issues, U.S.
government agencies, U.S. government obligations) of $408,518,145, short-term instruments (certificates of deposit,
commercial paper, U.S. treasury bills, short-term notes, repurchase agresments and time deposits) of 332,489 616,
futures contacts of $587,258, forward confracts of $2.254.726, reverse repurchase agreements of $(12,495.008),
swaps contracts of $(1,187.522), writlen credit defaull swaptions of $(1,262) and written options contracts of
$(17.813). The valuation of investments in unconsolidaled structured entities represents the amount the Series Trust
would expect to recaive if it wera 1o liquidated or redeem its invesiments subject to the underlying fund's liquidity or
redemption restrictions and costs.

The Selected Fund is financed through equity capital provided by investors, include the Series Trust. During the

period ended July 31, 2020 the Series Trust did not provide any other financial support to the Selected Fund and has
no inlention of providing financial or ather supper 1o this entity.
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{Expressed in U.S. Dollars)

The rights attached io the Series Trusts holding

in the Selecied Fund is similar to lhose of other investors,

Subscriptions inlo the Selected Fund are govemed by the rights stipulated in their offering documents. The Series

Trust has the ability lo

liquidate or redeem its investments periodically in accordance with the provisions of the

respective fund agreements. Refer to Mote 1 for information regarding the investment objectives of the Selected

Fund.
&. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Forward Contracts

The Investmant Manager for the Selected Fund enters into fonward contracts for the Selected Fund by buying forward
contracts, under normal circumstances in an amount equal, to the extent possible, to approximately 100% of the USD
exposure of the Net Asset Value {excluding unrealized currency gain or losses).

The Cumency Administrator enters inte currency forward transaclions with the Trustee (solely in its capacily as
trustes of the Series Trust) for the account of the TRY Class Units, with the aim of ensuring stability on a TRY basis.
Pursuant to the Currency Forwards, the Trustee (solely in its capacity as trustee of the Series Trusi) sells U.S. Dollars
and buys Turkish Lira, in each case on a forward (typically one month) basgis, in a notional amount equal, to the
axtent possible, o approximately 100% of the Net Asset Value (sxcluding unrealized cumrency gain or losses). In
addition, Currency Forwards are to be executed by delivery seflement on their maturity date but mot by net
setllement. The Cumency Forwards are administered by the Currency Administrator.

Forward Contracts Quistanding at July 31, 2020 ({0.0)% of Net Assats)

Net Unrealized
Setlement Appreciation
Date Counterparty Currency Amount Baught Curroncy Amount Scid [Depreciation]
HOTIZCE0 cs TRY 245785107 usoD (3e3T41 3 (565.556)
DB/ 020 ] usn 5,773,796 TRY {245.785.107) 708,512
o9V 10M2020 cE TRY 241472318 usp (34,057.272) {412 332)
5 (772.249)
Counterparty Glossary:

G5 = Credit Suisse Intarnational

7. NET LOSS ON FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

July 31, 2020
Mat loss on fingncial asse's and labiktes at fair value
through profit and loss consist of the following:
Met realizad gain on investments in debt secunties % 69.515
Mat realized lcss on investments in forward confracts (2458 828)

Totzl net realized loss on financial assate and liabiftes at fair
value through profit or loss

Movemnant in nel unrealized appraciation on investiments in

5 (2,389.313)

dabl securities 5 B17.385
Movermen in unrealized depreciation on investment in
forward contracts [775.249)
Total net change in unreakzed depreciation on financial assels
and Eabilites at fair value through profit or loss 5 [161,554)

8. FEES, EXPENSES AND RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
8.1 Fees and Expenses

{A) Administrator Fees

The Administrator recaives an annual fes of 0.05% on the first USSS00 million of the net assets, 0.05% on the next
US$500 million of the net assets and 0.04% on the net assels over US$1 billion, subject to a monthly minimum fee of
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$3,750. The fees earned by the Administrator during the period ended July 31, 2020, and culstanding fees payable to
the Administrator as of July 31, 2020, have been disclosed in the Statement of Comprehensive Income and the
Statement of Financial Position, respectively.

(B) Custody Fees

The Custodian receives an annual fee of 0.025% of Net Assats Value. The fees eamed by the Custodian during the
period ended July 31, 2020, and outstanding fses payable to the Custodian as of July 31, 2020, have been disclosed
in the Statement of Comprehensive Income and the Stalement of Finandial Position, respectively.

{C) Distribution Fees

The Distributor recefves an annual fee of 0.60% of the Met Asset Value attribulable to the TRY Class Units payable
monthly in arears. The Distribution Fees are payable by the Administrator, on behalf of the Manager, out of the
sssets of the Saries Trust. The fees samed by the Distributer during the period ended July 31, 2020, and oulstanding
fees payable to the Distributor as of July 31, 2020, have been disclosed in the Statement of Comprehensive Income
and the Statement of Financial Positicn, respectively.

(D) Investment Management Fees

The Investmant Manager receives an annual fes of 0.35% of the Net Assel Value payable quarterly in arrears.
The feas sarned by the Investment Manager during the period ended July 31, 2020, and oulstanding fees payable to
the Investment Manager as of July 31, 2020, have been disclosed in the Statement of Comprehensive Income and
the Statement of Financial Position, respactively.

(E) Transfer Agent Fees

The Transfer Agent receives an annual fee of 0.01% of the Net Assel Value and a $10 fee per ransaction out of the
assets of the Seres Trusl. The fees eamed by the Transfer Agent during the pericd ended July 31, 2020, and
outstanding fees payable lo the Transfer Agent as of July 31, 2020, have been disclosed in the Statement of
Comprehensive Income and the Stalement of Financial Position, respectively.

{F) Professional Fees

Professional fees include legal and audit fees. The fees paid during the period ended July 31, 2020, and
outstanding fees payable as of July 31, 2020, have been disclosed in the Statement of Comprehensive Income and
the Statement of Financial Positicn, respectively.

£.2 Related Party Transactions

Parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability fo control the other party or exercise significant
influence over the other party in making financial or operational decisions. The Trustes, Fee Agent, Manager, Agent
Mamber Company and Derivative Counterparty are all related parties to the Series Trusl,

There were na other ransactions with related parties other than those In the normal course of business.

{A) Trustee Fees

The Trustes is entitled to receive out of the Operational Costs Fee a iixed annual fee of 510,000 payable annually in
advance. The fees earned by the Trustee during the period ended July 31, 2020, and outstanding fees payable to the
Trustee as of July 31, 2020, have been disclosed in the Statement of Comprehensive Income and the Statement of
Finaneial Position, respectively, 25 a par of fee agent fees.

|B) Fee Agent Fees

The Fee Agent receives an annual fee of 0.12% of Net Assets Value (lhe "Operational Costs Fees”), accrued on and
caleulated as at each valualion day. The Operational Costs Fees are paid by the Adminisirator, on bahalf of the
Trustes out of the assets of the Series Trust. The fess samed by the Fee Agent during the pericd ended July 31,
2020, and outstanding fees payable lo the Fee Agent as of July 31, 2020, have been disclesed in the Statement of
Comprehensive Income and the Statement of Financial Position, respectively.

The Fee Agent is responsible for paying the manager fees, the trustee fees and costs and expenses, which are. in
the reasonable judgement of the Fee Agent, determined as associated cosls and expenses of the manager fees and
frustee fees (the “Crdinary Cosls™).

For the avoidance of doubt, the Fee Agent is not responsible for the payment of the investment manager fees, audit
fees, formation expenses, distibution fess, adminisiration fees, custody fees, any broker fees relating to secunty
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transactions, any legal and auditing costs that are not included in the audit fees and expenses, annual fees payable
in respect of the Series Trust or the Trust to govemment bodies and agencies. any insurance costs, any costs
relating to the Offering Memorandum and Appendix 32 and ather similar offering documents and the costs relating to
the preparation, printing, translation and delivery of such documents and any taxes relating to the purchase or
disposal of securities, legal or compensation costs, licensing, tax reporting, anfi-money laundering compliance
and monitoring, expensas related to the termination or the Bguidation of the Series Trust and any other extracrdinary
costs and expenses that would not usually occur.

Ta the axtent thal the Operational Cosls Fee is not sufficient to cover the Ordinary Costs, the Fee Agent is liable for
any outstanding amounts. Any amounts remaining following payment of the Ordinary Costs shall be retained by the
Fee Agent as its remuneration for acting as fee agent in respect of the Series Trust.

The Operational Costs Fees accrue dally on an aclual / 385 day count fraction basis and are payable quartery in
armears in the amount accrued, from and excluding, for the first accreal pericd only, the initial closing day, and for all
olher accrual periods, the last day of each calendar quarter,

{C) Manager Fees

The Manager is entitled fo receive out of the Operational Costs Fee. a management fee of $5,000 per annum payable
monthly in amears. The fees esmed by the Manager during the period ended July 31, 2020 and outstanding fees
payable to the Manager as of July 31, 2020, have been disclosed in the Statement of Comprehensive Income and the
Stalement of Financial Position, respectively, as a part of fee agent fees.

{D) Agent Member Company Fees

The Agent Member Company is enfitled to receive a fee of 0.01% per annum of the Net Asset Valua attributable to
the TRY Class Units payable quarterly in arrears. The Agent Member Company Fees are paid by the Administratar,
on behalf of the Manager out of the asssie of the Seres Trust. The fees eamed by the Agent Member Company
during the period ended July 31, 2020, and cutstanding fees payable to the Agent Member Company as of July 31,
2020, have been disclosed in the Statement of Comprehensive Income and the Statement of Financial Position,
respectively.

(E) Derivative Counterparty

The Series Trust is permitted 1o anter into forward contracts with Credil Suisse International, a refated party to the
Menager. During the period ended July 31, 2020, there was net realized loss of $2,457 984, and there was change in
unrealized depreciation of $779,249, on forwand contracts with Credit Suisse Intemational which is disclosed in the
Statement of Comprehensive Income.

9. BORROWING AND LEVERAGE POLICY

The Series Trust may borrow up to 10% of its Nel Asset Value if required to facilitate short term cash flows. During
the perod endad July 31, 2020, the Series Trust did not incur any borrowings.

10. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

The development of the COVID pandemic since August 1. 2020 is ongoing and its impact has proven to have an
adverse effect on financial markets. The rapid development and fluidity of this situation precludes any prediction as its
ultimate impact, which may have a continued adverse impact on eccnomic and market conditions and trigger a period
of global econemic slowdown. Manager and the Trusiee do not believe that there is any financial impact to the
financial statements as at July 31, 2020 as a result of this subsequent event.

Manegement end the Trustee are monitoring developments relating to corenavirus and is coordinating its operafional
response based on existing business continuity plans and on guidance from global health organizations, relevant
govemments, and general pandemic response best practices.

The Trusles has evaluated all subsequent transactions and events through November 30, 2020, the date on which
these financial statements wers available to be issued. Effective February 1, 2020 through November 30, 2020, there

were subscriplions of $3,814, 044 and repurchasas of 55,520,458, There are no other subsequent events to report as
relates to the Saries Trust.
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2020 11
30,633,720.52 3,182,537,225
303,662.71 31,547,519
30,330,057.81 3,150,989, 706
20,195,686
1.50 156
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583,412,703
33,736,095
7,438,415,543
237,249,295
30 236,257,547,964
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2018 2018 12 31 2019 2019
12 31
22 38
59 131

23 103

2020 11 30
103.89
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2019 12 31
2019 2018
usD usD

34,534 3,588 22,534 2,341
34,534 3,588 22,534 2,341
4 34,534 3,588 22,534 2,341
5 215,000 22,336 205,000 21,297
1) ) 8 1
249,513 25,922 227,542 23,639
6 (143,734) (14,933) (121,067) (12,578)
105,779 10,989 106,475 11,062
105,779 10,989 106,475 11,062
7 - - - -
105,779 10,989 106,475 11,062

17
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2019 12 31
2019 2018

usD usD
9 1,436,186 149,205 1,213,367 126,057
10 217,427 22,588 206,873 21,492
1,653,613 171,794 1,420,240 147,549
10 131,329 13,644 3,735 388
131,329 13,644 3,735 388
11 735,000 76,359 735,000 76,359
787,284 81,791 681,505 70,802
1,522,284 158,150 1,416,505 147,161
1,653,613 171,794 1,420,240 147,549

N o S\

17
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2019 12 31
usb usD usb
2019
2019
2019 735,000 76,359 681,505 70,802 1,416,505 147,161
- - 105,779 10,989 105,779 10,989
2019 12 31 735,000 76,359 787,284 81,791 1,522,284 158,150
2018
2018
2018 735,000 76,359 575,030 59,740 1,310,030 136,099
- - 106,475 11,062 106,475 11,062
2018 12 31 735,000 76,359 681,505 70,802 1,416,505 147,161

17
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2019 12 31
2019 2018

USD usD
105,779 10,989 106,475 11,062
4 (34,534) (3,588) (22,534) (2,341)
21 2 ®) @
71,266 7,404 83,933 8,720
(10,575) (1,099) 92,358 9,595
(10,575) (1.099) 92,358 9,595
127,594 13,256 (1,639) (170)
127,594 13,256 (1,639) (170)
188,285 19,561 174,652 18,145
4 34,534 3,588 22,534 2,341
34,534 3,588 22,534 2,341
222,819 23,149 197,186 20,486
1,213,367 126,057 1,016,181 105,571
1,436,186 149,205 1,213,367 126,057
9 1,436,186 149,205 1,213,367 126,057
1,436,186 149,205 1,213,367 126,057

17
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KY1-1104
309 c/o Maples Corporate Services
Limited, P.0. Box 309, Ugland House, Grand Cayman KY1-1104, Cayman Islands

IFRS
IFRS I1AS
1ASB

IFRS

uSsD
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IFRS
IFRS
IFRS ECL
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IFRIC 23 1ASB 2017 IFRIC 23
IFRIC 23
IAS 12
IFRIC
23 2019 2019 IFRIC 23
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IFRS 2015 2017 1ASB 2017 12 IFRS 2015 2017
IFRS 2015 2017 IFRS 2015 2017 2019
2019 IFRS 2015 2017
IAS 19 IASB 2018
IAS 19
IAS 19 2019
2019 IAS 19
1ASB IFRS
17
2019 2018
34,534 22,534
34,534 22,534
2019 2018
215,000 205,000

215,000 205,000
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2019 2018
(34,668) (1,315)
(191) (545)
(34,859) (1,860)
(3,119) (3,117)
(105, 756) (106,500)
- (9,590)
(108,875) (119,207)
(143,734) (121,067)

2029 10 10

2019 12 31

HOLT®

5,000 2018 5,000 2019 12 31
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CS

CS

US

J-REIT

US

NB/MYAM

UK

AMP

US

AMP REIT

J-REIT

17 20

CAT

HOLT

PIMCO

J-REIT
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2019 2018
1,436,186 1,213,367
1,436,186 1,213,367
10
2019 2018
217,427 206,873
217,427 206,873
2019 2018
131,329 3,735
131,329 3,735
11
2019 2018

1,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000

735,000 735,000 735,000 735,000
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12

2019 2018 12 31

2019
2018 12 31

HKD

HKD usb USD HKD
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2019 2018 12 31
13
2019 12 31 2018 12 31
- 215,000 215,000 - 205,000 205,000
- 215,000 215,000 - 205,000 205,000
25,573 - 25,573 3,735 - 3,735
735,000 - 735,000 735,000 - 735,000
760,573 - 760,573 738,735 - 738,735
2019 12 31 2018 12 31
- 215,000 215,000 - 205,000 205,000
34,668 - 34,668 1,315 - 1,315
2019 2018
105,756 106,500
105,756 106,500
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14

2019 12 31

15

16

2019

17 2019 12 31

1ASB 2019 12 31
IFRS 17

IFRS 2020
1AS 1AS 2020

2020 2020
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Cradi Suisss Maragoment (Cayman) Limfed
Financial slaterrents for the yeer snded 31 Dacember 2019

Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income for the Year Ended
31 December 2019

Refempoe

to Mate
2019 2018
Statement of profit or loss (USD)

Interest income 34,634 029 R34
- of which Interest income from instruments at amortised cost 34,534 o0 534
Net interest income 4 34534 22,534
Senvice Fee Income 5 215,000 205,000
Other (losses)/revenues (21) 8
Met revenuas 249513 227,542
General, administrative and trading expenses 6 (143, 734) (121,067
Operating profit before allowance and taxation 105,779 108,475
Profit before tax 105,779 106,475
Income tax expense 7 — -
Profit after tax 105,779 106,475

The notes on pages 8 to 17 form part of these financial statements,
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Cradit Susse Managament (Cayman) Limded
Fingneial statemants for the pear ended 31 Decarbar 2015

Statement of financial pasition at 31 December 2019

i

2019 2018
Assets (USD)
Cash and due from banks g 1,436,185 1,213,367
Cther assets 10 217,427 206,873
Total assets 1,653,613 1,420,240
Liabilities (USD)
Other liabilities 10 131,329 3,735
Total liabilities 131,329 3,735
Shareholders’ equity (USD)
Share capital i1 735,000 735,000
‘Retained eamings 787,284 681,506
Total shareholders’ equity 1,522,284 1,416,505
Total liabilities and shareholders' equity 1,653,613 1,420,240

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on [0 Jome 2020

e T B gt
2

Nicohas Papavaing
Director

gisse Moncgemént {cayman) Limited

Credit 5

The notes on pages 8 to 17 form part of these financial statements.
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Cirenfit Suisne Management (Ciyman) Limved
Financial siatamends for the pear onded 31 Decamber 2018

Statement of changes in equity for the year ended 31 December 2019

Share  Ratained
capital  samings Total
2019 o
2019 Statement of changes in equity (USD)
Balance at 1 January 2019 735000 681,505 1,416,505
Profit for the year — 105779 105,779
Balance at 31 December 2019 735,000 87,284 1,522,284
2016 o B
2018 Statement of changes in equity (USD)
Balance at 1 January 2018 735000 575,030 1,310,030
Profit for the year — 106,475 106,475

735,000 681,505 1,416,505

The notes on pages 8 to 17 form part of these financial statements.
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Crecll Suisse Marnmgermemt (Cayman) Limiled
Financial slalemants for the year ended 31 Decembar 3015

Statement of Cash flow for the year ended 31 December 2019

Relgmce
o Nowm

2019 2018

Cash flows from operating activities (USD)
Profit for the year 108,779 106,475

Adjustments to reconcile net profit to net cash
generated from operating activities

Mon-cash items included in net profit before tax

and other adjustments:

Interest Income 4 (34,634) (272,534)
Unrealised gain and loss 21 8
Cash generated from before changes in

operating assets and liabilities 71,266 83,933
Met (increase)/decrease in operating assets:

Other assets {10,678) 52,358
Met (increase)/decrease in operating assets (10,575) 52,358
Met increase/(decrease) in operating liabilities:

Other labiliies and provisions 197,504 (1,638)
Met increase/{decrease) in operating liabilities 127,594 (1,639)
Income taxes paid - -
Met cash generataed from operating activities 188,285 174,652
“Cash flows from financing activity (USD)

Interest income 4 34,534 o0 534
MNet cash generated fromfinancing activity (USD) 34,534 22,534
Met increase in cash and cash equivalents 222,819 197,186
Cash and cash equivalenis at the beginning of year 1,213,267 1,016,181
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of year

(usD) 1,436,186 1,213,367
Cash and due from banks g 1,436,186 1,213,367
Cash and cash equivalents st the end of year

(UsD) 1,436,186 1,213,367

The notes on pages B to 17 form part of these financial statements.
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Credit Suisse Management (Cayman) Linnitesd
Motes to Financial staternenis for the year ended 31 Dacember 2019

MNotes to the financial statements
1. Principal activities

Credit Suisse Management (Cayman) Limited {the “Company®) is incorporated in the Cayman Islands
with limited liabllity. The Company's principal activities are the creation of trusts and the administration
and management of assets in trusts. The Company’s registerad office is ¢/o Maples Corporate Services
Limited, .0, Box 309, Ugland House, Grand Cayman KY1-1104, Cayman islands.

2. Significant Accounting Policies
(a)  Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with all applicable Intemational Financial
Reporting Standards (“IFRSs®), which collective term includes all applicable individual Intemational
Financial Reporting Standards, Intemational Accounting Standards (*lASs") and Interpretations issued
by Intemational Accounting Standards Board (*IASB"). A summary of the significant accounting policies
adopted by the Company is st out below.

(b)  Basis of preparation of the financial statements
The measurement basis used in the preparation of the financial statements is the historical cost basis,

The preparation of financial statements in confommity with IFRSs requires management to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of policies and reported amounts of
assels, liabilites, income and expenses. The aestimates and associated assumptions are based on
historical experience and various other factors thatare believed to be reasonable under the circumstances,
the results of which form the basis of making the judgements about canying values of assets and liabilities
that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that
period, or in the period of the revision and fulure periods if the revision aftects both curmant and future
periods.

{c)  Foreign curency

The Company's functional and presentation currency is US Dollars (USD). Foreign currency transactions
during the year are translated into United States Dollars at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the
transaction dates. Monetary assets and liabilites denominated in foreign currencies are translated into
United States Dollars at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the end of the reporting penod. Exchange
gains and losses are recognised in the profit or loss.

Nen-monetary assets and liabiliies that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency
are translated into United States Dollars using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates.
MNon-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies that are stated at fair value are
translated using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates the fair value was determined. Foreign
cumency differences arising on retranslation are recognised in profit or loss.
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Credit Suisse Management {Cayman) Limitad
Motes to Financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2019

2 Significant accounting policies (continued)
fd) Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and due from banks comprise cash at bank and on hand with banks, and short-term, highly liquid
investments that are readily converible inte known amounts of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value, having been within three months of maturity at acquisition,

(el Other assels

Other assets are initially recognised at fair value and thereafter stated at amartised cost less allowance
for impairment of doubtiul debts (see note X{q)), except where the receivables are interest-free loans
made to refated parties withoutany fixed repaymentterms or the effect of discounting would be immaterial.
in such cases, the receivables are stated at cost less impaiment for bad and doubtful debis.

(# Pravisions and contingent fiabilities

Provisions are recognised for labilities of uncertain timing er amount when the Company has a legal or
constructive ohligation arising as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate cash be made. Where the time
value of money is matenal, provisions are stated at the present value of the expenditure expected to
settle the oblgation.

Where it is not probable that an cutflow of ecenomic benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the probability of cutflow of
economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations, whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurmrence of one or more fulure events are also disclosed as contingent [iabilities
unless the probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote.

(¢} Impairment

The carrying amount of the Company'sassets is reviewed at the end of each reporting pericd to determine
whether there is any objective evidence of impairment. If any such objective evidence exists, the asset's
recoverable amount is estimated at the end of each reporting period. An impairment loss is recognised
whenever the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount.  impairment losses are
recognised in the profit or loss.

Under IFRS 9, the impairment requirements apply primarily fo financial assets measured at amaortised
cost. The impairment requirements have changed from an incurred loss model under IFRS © to an
expected credit loss ("ECL") model under IFRS 9 by incorporating reasonable and supportable forecasts
of fulure economic conditions available at the reporting date. The adoption of this does not have a
material impact to the Company’s financial statements.

{h Revenue recognilion
Provided that it Is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the revenue and

costs, if applicable, can be measured reliably, management fee income is recognised in profit or loss
when the investment management senice is provided.
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Credit Suisse Management {Cayman) Limited
Motes to Financial stetements for the year ended 31 December 20189

Significant accounting policies (continued)

Expenses

All expenses are recognised in profit and loss on an accrual basis,

Related parties

For the purpases of these financial statements, a party is considered to be related to the Company if:

(2)

(b)

A person, or a dlose member of that person's family, is related to the Company if that persan:
{) has control or joint control over the Company;

(i) has significant influence over the Company; or

(i} iz a member of the key management personnel of the Company or the Company's parent.

An entity is related to the Company if any of the following conditions applies:

(il The entityand the Company are members of the same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and feliow subsidiary is related to the othars).

{(iy Onaentity is an associate or joint venture of the other antity (or an associate or joint venture
of a member of a group of which the other entity is a member).

(i) Both entiies are joint ventures of the same third party.

(W) One entity is a joint venture of a third party and the ather entity is an associate of the third
party.

(v} The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit of employees of either the
Company or an entity related to the Company.

{(v) The entity is controlled or jointly contrclled by a person identified in (a).

(vi) A person identified in (a)i) has significant influence over the entiy or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the enfity).

Close members of the family of a person are those family members who may be expected to influence,
or be influenced by, that person in their dealings with the entity.

Standards and Interpretations effective in the current period

IFRIC 23: In June 2017, the IASE issued IFRIC 23 ‘Uncertainty over Income Tax
Treatments' (IFRIC 23). IFRIC 23 darifies the accounting for uncertainties in income taxes and
is to be applied o the determination of taxable profit (tax loss), tax bases, unused tax losses,
unused tax credits and tax rates, when there is uncertainty over income tax treatments under
IAS12. IFRIC 23 was effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018. The
Company adopted IFRIC 23 on 1 January 2018, The adoption did not have a matedal impact to
the Company's financial position, results of operation or cash flows,

Annual improvements to IFRSs 2015-2017 Cycle: In December 2017, the IASE issued *Annual
Improvements to IFRSs 2015-2017 cycle' (Improvements to [FRSs 2015-2017). The
Improvemeants to IFRSs 2015-2017 were effective for annual perods beginning on or after 1
January 2019. The Company adopted the Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2015-2017 Cycle on
1 January 2019, The adoption did not have a material impact o the Company's financial position,
results of cperation or cash flows.

10
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Credit Suisse Management (Caymean) Limited
Maotes to Financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2015
2 Significant accounting policies (continuad)
s Amendments to IAS 15 Plan Amendment, Curtaiment or Setlement: In February 2018, the
IASE issued 'Flan Amendment, Curtaliment or Setiement’ (Amendments to |AS 19} that specifies
how companies determine pension expenses when changes to a defined benefit pansion plan
occur. The Amendments to IAS 19 were effective for annual periods beginning en or after 1
January 2019, The Company adopted the Amendments to 1AS 19 on 1 January 2018, The
adoption did not have a material impact to the Company's financial position, results of operation
or cash fiows,

3. Changes in Accounting Policies

The IASE has issued a number of amendments to IFRSs that are first effective for the current accounting
period of the Company. Nona of these developments have had a material effect on how the Company’s
results and financial position for the cument or prior periods have bean prepared or presented in Note
2(k).

The Coempany has not applied any new standard or interpretation that is not yet effective for the current
accounting period (Note 17},

4. Net Interest incomea

2019 2018
Net Imterest income (USD)
Interest income on cash and due from banks 34 534 22 534
Interest income 34,534 22 534

Al the above interest income on instruments are at amortised cost,
5. Service Fee Income

The principal activities of the Company are the creation of trusts and the administration and management
of assets in trusts.

Revenue represents iivestment managerment fee income earned from fellow subsidiary as follows:

2019 2018
'Revenues (USD)
Senice fee income 215,000 205000
Total revenues 215,000 205,000

11
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Credit Suisse Managament (Cayman) Limited
Motes to Financlal statements for the year ended 31 December 2019

6. General, Administrative and Trading Expenses

2019 2018

General, administrative and trading expensas (USD)

Other expenses (34.668) (1,315)
‘Bank charges (191) (545)
Trading expenses (34,859) (1,860)
Auditor remuneration (3.119) 3, 117)
Directars’ remuneration (106,758) {(106,500)
Professional Servicas - (B,590)
General and administrative expenses (108,875) (119,207)
Total general, administrative and trading expenses (143,734) (121,067)

All of the above expendifures are payable to the Company'simmediate holding company and the immediate
halding company setfles such expenditures on behalf of the Company.

7. Taxation

There are no taxes on income or gains in the Cayman Islands and the Company has received an
undertaking from the Govemor in Council of the Cayman Islands exempting it from all local income,
profits and capital taxes until 10 October 2029, Accordingly, no pravision for income taxes is included
in these financial statements.

8. Unconsolidated Structured Entities
Sponsored unconsolidated structured enfities

The Company cansiders itself the sponsor of a structured entity when either its name appears in the name
of the structured entity or in preducts issued by it or there is a general expectation from the market that the
Cornpany is associated with the structured entity or the Company was invoived in the design or set up of the
structured entity and has a form of invelvement with the structured entity. For unconsolidated structured
entities that were sponsored by the Company but nointerestwas held, the Company did not receive investment
management fees from these entities during the reporting period and no assets were transfered to these
entities.

The below unconsolidated structured entities are sponsored by the Company where no management fee is
received and no interest is held by the Company as at 31 December 2015:

. HOLTE Japan Income Plus Strategy Fund (For Qualified Institutional investors Only)
The below unconsoiidated structured entifies are sponsored by the Company where a fixed annual

management fee of USD 5,000 (2018: USD 5,000) is received but no interest is held by the Company as
at 31 Decamber 2019:

12
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Credit Suisse Management (Cayman) Limited
Motes fo Financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2019

B. Unconsolidated Structured Entities (Continued)

Asia Equity Income Plus Strategy Fund (For Qualified Institutional Investors Only)

Global REIT Alpha Fund (For Qualified Institutional Investors Cnly)

Austrafian High Dividend Equity Twin Alpha Fund (For Qualified Institutional investors Crly)
Daiwa Austraian High Dividend Equity Alpha Fund (For Qualified Institutional Investors Only)
Principal / CS Canadian Equity Income Fund (For Qualified Institutional Investors Only)

CS Global REIT Triple Premium Fund (For Qualfied Institutional Investors Only)

US Figh Dividend Equity Premium Fund (For Qualified Institutional Investars Only)

US Small Cap Equity Premium Fund (For Qualified Institutional Invesiors Only)

Daiwa Emerging Local Market Bond Fund (For Qualified Institutional investors Oniy)

"JREIT Fund (For Gualfied Instiutional Investors Oy}

"US Prefered REIT Income Fund (For Qualified Institufional Investors Only)

NE/MYAM US REIT Income Fund (For Qualified Institutional Investors Only)
Daiwa UK High Dividend Equity Fund (For Qualified Instifutional investors Oniy)
AMP Australia income Band Fund (For Qualified Institutional Investors Onily)
Brazil Equity Alpha Fund (For Qualified Instituional Investors Only)

Daiwa Brariian Real Bond Fund (For Qualified Institutional Investors Only)

US Value Equity Goncentrated Fund (For Qualiied Institutional Investors Oniy)
Nissay Japan Equity Active Fund (For Qualified Institutional Investars Only)
AMP Australia REIT Fund (For Gualified institutional Investors Only)

Shinsei European Bond Fund (For Qualiied Institutional Investors Only}
m American High Dividend Equity Quattro Income Fund (For Cualified Institutional Investors

Dabwa American REIT Guattro Income Fund (For Clualified Institutional Investors Only)

Shinsei World Wrap Fund Stable Type (For Qualified Institutional Investors Only)

Shinsei World Wrap Fund Growth Type (For Qualified Institutional Investors Only)

LS REIT Triple Engine Plus Fund (For Qualified Institutional Investors Only)

Japanese Government Bond 17-20 Year Ladder Fund (For Cualified Institutional Investors Only)

Australia REIT Plus Fund

US Treasury 5-7 Year Ladder Fund (For Qualified Institutional Investors Only)
US Municipal Bond Fund

“Tokio Marine CAT Bond Fund

Downside Control Equity Fund (For Qualified Instiutional Investors Only)
Global High Dividend Equity Premium Fund (For Qualified Institutional Investors inly)
Meister's Collection

US REIT Premium Fund (For Qualified Institutional investors Only)

HOLT Euro Equity Premium Fund (For Qualified Institutional Investors Only)
PIMCO Short Term Income Strategy Fund

PIMCO Short Term Strategy

Daiwa J -REIT Covered Call Fund (For Qualified institutional investors Only)

The Company has not provided financial or other support o consolidated structured entities that it was not
contractually required fo provide,

The Company does not currently have the intention to provide financial or other support fo unconsolidated
structured entities that it is not contractually required fo provide,

13
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Credit Suisse Management (Cayman) Limited
Mates to Financial statermants for the year ended 31 December 2019

Cash and cash equivalents comprize:
2019 2018
Cash and due from banks (USD)
Cash and due from banks 1,436,186 1,213,357
Total cash and due from banks 1,436,186 1,213,367
Other Assets and Other Liabilities
_ 2019 2018
Other assets (USD) —
interest and fees receivable 217,427 206,873
Total other assats 217,427 206,873
— 2019 2018
Other liabilities (USD)
Interest and fees payable 131,328 3,735
Total other liabilities 131,329 3,735
Share Capital
Authorised and issued share capital
2019 2018
No. of uso No. of usD
shares shares
Authorised: .
Ordinary shares of USD 1 each 1,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000
Issued and fully paid up: N e _
Ordinary shares 735,000 735,000 735,000 735,000

The helders of ordinary shares are entitied to receive dividends as declared from time to time and are entitied
to one vote per share at general meetings of the Company. All ordinary shares rank equally with regard to

the Company’s residual assets.

Capital management

The Company's primary objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the Company's ability to continue
as a going concern so that it can confinue to provide retums for shareholders, by pricing services
commensurately with the level of risk and by securing access to finance at a reasonable cost. As the Company
is part of a larger group, the Company's sources of additional capital and policies for distibution of excess
capital may also be affected by the group's capital management objectives. The Company defines “capital”

as including all components of equity.

14
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Credit Suisse Management {Cayman) Limited

- F f 1 1
11.  Share ital ( i) Motes to Financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2013
The Campany'scapital structure is regularly reviewed and managed with due regard to the capital management
practices of the group to which the Company belangs. Adjustments are made to the capital structure in light

of changes in economic conditions affecting the Company or the group, to the exdent that these do not conflict
with the directors’ fiduciary duties towards the Company.

The Company was not subject to externally imposed capital requirements in the cument perind,

12. Financial Risk Management and Fair Values
Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate and foreign currency risks arises in the nomal course of the
Company's business. These risks are managed by the Company’s financial management poficies and
practices described bebow,

(@  Creditrisk
The Company's credit risk is primarily attibutable fo amounts due from group companies and cash at
bank. Credit risk is defined as risk that one party to a financial instrument will cause a financial loss to
another party by failing to discharge an obligation. Management regularly monitors its risk exposure to
ensure that its credit rigk is kept to a minimal level. The maximum exposure to credit risk is represented
by the carrying amount of each financial asset in the statement of financial position after deducting any
impairment allowance.

()  Liquidity risk

The Company's policy is to regulary montor its Biquidity requirements to safisfy its contractual and
reasonably foreseeable obligations as they fall due.

At 31 December 2018 and 2018, all of the Compeany's financial labifibes, which includes all creditors
and accruals, are on demand or undated and are sxpacted to be settled within three months.

(c} Interest rate risk
The Company is exposed to interest rate risk only fo the extent that it earns bank intzrest on cash and
deposits. At 31 December 2019 and 2018, a change in interest rates would have no direct material
effect on the camrying value of the recognisad assets or lishilities of the Company.

(d)  Foreign currency risk

The Company is exposed to foreign currency risk primarily through certain transactions which give rise
to payables that are denominated in Hong Kong dollars ("HKD").

As the HED is pegged to the United States dollar ("USD"), the Company considers that the risk of
movements in exchange rates between the USD and the HKD to be insignificant,

(e} Fair values

The carying amounts of the Company's financial instruments caried at cost or amortised cost are not
materialy different from their fair value as at 31 December 2019 and 2018,

15

188/230



EDINETOOOO
DOo00oOOo0ooDo00oo00Do00DoO0Ooo(ELs389)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

Credit Suisse Management (Cayman) Limited
Motes to Financial statements for the yesr ended 31 December 2019

Material Related Party Transactions

in addition to the transactions and balances disclosed alsewhere in the financial statements, the Company
entered into the following material related party transactions.

a) Related party balance sheet fransactions

In addition to the fransactions and balances disclosed elsewhere in the financial statements, the Company
entered into the fallowing material related party transactions in the normal course of business.

December 31, 2018 I}aumai.m_n_
Parent Fellow Tatal Parent Fellow Total

Group Group

Companies Companias
Assets (USO)
Other assets = 215,000 215,000 = 205,000 205,000
Total essets — 215,000 215,000 - 205,000 205,000
Liabilties and Equity

S0
[ther liabdites 25,573 - 25,673 3,735 ~ 3,735
Share capital A8, 000 - F35.000 738,000 736,000
liabilities

wm,,- :n; ity 760,573 - 780,573 738,735 - 738,735

b} Related party revenues and expenses

December 31, 2019 December 31, 2018
Fellow Feilow
Parent Combanies. _Tots! Parent G'w;mulu Total
Cther revenues
{UsD)
Other revenues = 215,000 215,000 — 205,000 205,000
Chher expenses
{UsD)

Other expenses

34,668 — 34,668 1315 - 1,315

¢} Remuneration of Key Management Personnel

Rermunerstion of Key Management Perscnnel (USD) 2019 2018
Sher-term employen benshis 105,756 106,500
Total Remuneration of Key Management Persennel 105,756 106,500

Parent and Ultimate Holding Company

At 31 December 2019, the immediate parent of the Company is Credit Suisse (Hong Kong) Limited,
which is incorporated in Hong Kong and the ultimate controlling party of the Company is Credit Suisse
Group AG, which is incorporated in Switzerdand, Credit Suisse Group AG produces financial statements
available for public use.

Restatement of Comparative Figures

The Company financials have not been re-stated.
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Credit Suisse Management (Cayman) Limited
Maotes to Financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2019

16. Non-Adjusting Events after the Reporting Period

There are no material non-adjusting events for 2019,

17. Possible impact of Amendments, New Standards and Interpretations issued but not

yet effective for the year ended 31 December 2019

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the IASE has issued a number of amendments
and a new standard, IFRS 17, insurance contracts, which are not yet effective for the year ended 31

December 2019 and which have not been adopted in these financial statements, These developments
include the following which may be relevant to the Campany.

Effective for accounting perods
e . beqmmngunorafter

Amendments to IFRS 3, Definifion of a business 1 January 2020
Amendmntstai.ﬁﬁland!#&ﬂ Deﬁm‘finnafma‘rmaf 1 January 2020

The Company is in the process of making an assessment of what the impact of these developments is
expected to be in the perod of initial application. The amendments are effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2020 with an early adoption permitted. The adoption on 1 January 2020
did not have a significant impact on the Company’s financial position, resulis of operations or cash flows.

17
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Independent Auditors Report to the Trustee

P.O. Box493

SIX Cricket Square Grand Cayman KY 1-1106 Cayman Islands
Telephone +1 345 949 4800

Fax +1 345949 7164

Internet www.kpmg.ky

Independent Auditors' Report to the Trustee
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of PIMCO Short Term Strategy (the "Series Trust"), a series-
trust of Credit Suisse Universal Trust (Cayman) IlI, which comprise the statement of financial position as at July 31,
2020, the statements of comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows for the period from July 29, 2019 to
July 31, 2020, and notes, comprising a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the
Series Trust as at July 31, 2020, and its financial performance and its cash flows for the period then ended in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards ("IFRS").

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing ("ISAS"). Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the "Auditors Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements" section
of our report. We are independent of the Series Trust in accordance with International Ethics Standards Board for
Accountants International Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (including International |ndependence Standards)
("IESBA Code") together with ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the
Cayman Idlands, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the
IESBA Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with
IFRS, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Series Trust's ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Series Trust or to cease operations, or has no realistic

alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Series Trust's financial reporting process.
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Independent Auditors' Report to the Trustee (continued)
Auditors' Responsibility for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of
users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

* Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements , whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud
is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

» Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Series
Trust's internal control.

» Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by management.

» Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the Series Trust's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we
are required to draw attention in our auditors' report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the
date of our auditors' report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Series Trust to cease to continue as a
going concern.

» Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of

the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during
our audit.

November 30, 2020
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Independent auditor's report to the board of directors of
Credit Suisse Management (Cayman) Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the financia statements of Credit Suisse Management (Cayman) Limited (the “Company”) set
out on pages 4 to 17, which comprise the statement of financial position as at 31 December 2019, the statement of
profit and loss and other comprehensive income, the statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flow
for the year other then ended and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting
policies.

In our opinion, the financial statements give atrue and fair view of the financial position of the Company as at 31
December 2019 and of its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standard (“1FRS’).

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (“1SAS’). Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial
statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the International Ethics
Standards Board for Accountants Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“IESBA Code’) together with the
ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financia statementsin the Cayman Islands, and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilitiesin accordance with the IESBA Code. We believe that the audit evidence
we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Information other than the financial statements and auditor’s report thereon

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises al the information
included in the annual report, other than the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in
doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our

knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information; we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
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Independent auditor's report to the board of directors of
Credit Suisse Management (Cayman) Limited (continued)
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Responsibilities of the directors for the financia statements

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with IFRS and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis
of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or have no
realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion.
This report is made solely to you, as abody, in accordance with our agreed terms of engagement, and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error
and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professiona judgement and maintain professional
scepticism throughout the Audit. We also:

- ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations or the override of internal control.
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Independent auditor's report to the board of directors of
Credit Suisse Management (Cayman) Limited (continued)
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements (continued)

- Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Company’s internal control.

- Bvaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the directors.

- Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on
the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

- Evauate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with the directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and

significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our
audit.

Certified Public Accountants
8th Floor, Prince' s Building

10 Chater Road
Central, Hong Kong
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